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John Bolil
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November 7.2017

Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education

Salem County Special Services School District
PO Box 126

Woodstown, New Jersey 08098

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Salem County Special Services School District for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2017, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness
and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board of Education
(Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the datapresented in this report is accurate in all material respects
and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the final position and results of operations of the various funds
and the account groups of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
District's financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical and
single audit information. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart
and a list of principal off,rcials. The financial section includes the basic financial statements and schedules, as well as

the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes selected f,rnancial and demographic information,
generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity
with the provisions of Title 2 CFR 200- Uniform Amdinistrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations" and state Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB. "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal
Grants, State Grants and State Aid". Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's report on internal
control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, is included in the
single audit section of this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: Salem County Special Services School District is an
independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB as established by Statement No. 14. All
funds of the District are included in this report. The Salem County Special Services Board of Education and all
its schools constitutes the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of special educational services for children from birth to age 21. The following
programs during the 2016-2017 school year included, alternative high and middle schools, behavior disabilities,
transitional career programs, Pre-school, multipþdisabilities, cognitive, autistic,and deaf and hearing impaired.
The following details the changes in the student enrollment of the last five years. This includes an increase of one
students in the 2016-17 school vear.

Average Daily Enrollment
Student Percent

Enrollment Change
Fiscal
Year

z0l6-17
2015-16
2014-15

2013-14
2012-t3

263.0
262.0

295.0
286.0

154.6

0.38%
-lr.t9%
3.15Yo

84.99%
-4.09%
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2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AIID OUTLOOK: The Salem County Special Services School District is
located in a beautiful rural and agricultural county in southwestern New Jersey and conveniently located
near Wilmington, Delaware and Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. The county is home to many small businesses,
farms, and some industry. Major employers are PSEG, Dupont, the hospitals, County Government and the
school districts. The county is rich in historical and cultural heritage. It is a small county with
approximately 65,400 residents. Because of its small size, the need for community-based services is great.
Opportunity abounds for creating such services, especially for the under age 18 populations, which
comprises approximately 26 percent of the populations. The District has also expanded to serve neighboring
Cumberland County, which is larger and much more populous. There are unlimited opportunities to serve
the communities and school districts of Cumberland County. Even with its larger size and much greater
student populations, Cumberland County has neither a special services school district nor an educational
services commission. Therefore, the District is uniquely positioned to foster collaborative relationships with
the school districts of that county. The district does receive some support from the Freeholders of both
counties.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: The mission of the Salem County special services school district is to
provide a thorough and efficient education for students with mild to severe disabilities. It is currently a
regional educational service agency that provides high-quality and cost-effective programs and services
to the schools and districts of Salem and Cumberland Counties. The on-going mission is accomplished
through the efforts of administrators and staff who are dedicated to meeting the cognitive, emotional,
and social needs of each student, and to seeing that each student reaches their fullest potential. In
addition, Salem County Special Services School District embraces the concept of shared services for the
purpose of maximizing effrciencies and minimizing cost. Among current services provided through a
series of inter-local agreement our child study teams, related services, business administrator/board
secreta4z, and the superintendent. Finally, the Salem County special services school district
continuously monitors the emergent needs of districts in and around Salem and Cumberland County and
provides leadership and strategies to address those needs in a manner consistent with the goals and
objectives of the entire regional educational community.

2016-2017 continue to see instruction and resources be the primary focus of the district. The district
continues to enhance instruction through the training of staff regarding the Unique Learning System,
Creative Curriculum, Letter People, and PEC's. These resources have allowed our teachers to
complement content standards and achieve the objectives and goals that are set forth for our students.
The district continues to upgrade the technology infrastructure to aid in the ability of our staff to
instruct, interact, and reinforce the appropriate instruction based on the learners needs. The district
continues to upgrade and hands its technological capabilities that has included now assistive devices.

2016-2017 the district completed the final transitioning for the programs within the district. The
Cumberland Campus now houses all medically fragile, medically disabled, low functioning ASD, and
cognitive severe students. The Regional Day School/Salem Campus no\¡/ host the higher functioning
ASD students that participate in the transitional career program.

Child study team and related services continue to explore different business models to remain
competitive and provide quality service to the district they serve. It is hope that this new approach
continues to allow for growth in the future. The district has explored and is now implementing
transportation options for the 201,72018 in order to reduce the cost to the district. The Alternative
School continues to thrive as we continue to have strong relationships in Cumberland and Salem County
which allows our district to continue to grow and plan for the future as the program continues to be
hosted at the Salem Community College.
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In closing, Salem County special services appears to be stable. The district will be continuing to monitor
and evaluate programs in the future to ensure viability and financial responsibihty.

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal control designed to ensure that the assets of the District áre protected from loss,
theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accountin g dataare compiled to allow foittre preparation of
financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Intemal
control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance thai these ôbjectives are met. The
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benef,rts
likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgements by
management.

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring
that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related
to those programs. This internal control process is also subject to periodic evaluation by the bistrict's
management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of internal
control, including that portion related to federal awards and state financial assistance programs, as well as to
determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary
controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied
in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Board of School Estimates. Annual appropriated budgets
are adopted for the general fund and the special revenue fund; there is no debt service fund. The final budset
amount as amended for fiscal year 2017 is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year end are either cancelled or are included as reappropriation of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund
balance at June 30,2017.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM A¡ID REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted
accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board

(GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups.
These funds and açcount groups are explained in "Notes to Financial Statements", Note 2.

5.

6.
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7 ' CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment procedure of the District is guided in large part by state statute
as detailed in "Notes to the Financial Statement", Note 3. The District hãs adopted a cash management plan
which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from ioss under the provisions of
the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). G-UDPA was enacted in 1970 tó protect
governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution i¡ New Jeisey. The law
requires governmental units to deposit-public funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where
the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

8' RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but ¡ot limited to
general liability' hazard and theft insurance on properfy and contents and fidelity bonds.

9' OTHER TNFORMATION: Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent
certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of N-ightlinger,
Colavita and Volpa, Pa. was appointed by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in
State statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the rn" zcFR 200-Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audif Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance), and State of New Jersey Treasury circular l5-08 òMB, Single Audit policy for Èecipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. The auditor's report on the basic financial statements and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules are included in the financial sdction of this report.
The auditor's report related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this
report.

10' ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Salem
County Special Services District Board of Education for their .on""* in providing fiscal accountability to
the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby continuing tnåir ruu support to the development
and maintenance of our financial operation. The presentaiion of this ieport could not have been
accomplished without the effrcient and dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submiffed,

-^, / /'t /
,/ I- tö' l/ /.tt,{ -¿ if////r_ N. yl Au\-¿7 l ll t' ./ rJ -

/ / John R. Swain

I / Superintendent ofschools
V
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' S REPORT

Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education

Salem County Special Services School District
County of Salem, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the
Salem County Special Services School District in the County of Salem, State of New Jersey, as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, ard the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Salem County Special Services School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table
ofcontents.

Manaqement's Responsibilitv for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of frnancial statements that are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Resnonsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of
Administration and Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall flrnancial statement presentation.



-9-

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suff,rcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Salem County Special Services Board of Education in the County of Sule*,
State of New Jersey, as of June 30,2077, and the respective changes in financial position and cash fio*r, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedules related to accounting and reporting for
pensions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Salem County Special Services School Board of Education's basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining and individual non-major fund f,rnancial statements, and statistical section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule ofexpenditures offederal awards and state financial assistance is presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and
State Aid, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fînancial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual non-major fund financial
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

NIGHTLINGER. COLAVITA & VOLPA A Profes sio nal Asso ciatio n C ertiJied Pub lic Accountønß
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion õr provide any ãisurance on them.

other Reportine Required bv Government Auditins standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 7,
2017 on our consideration of the Salem County Special Services Board of Educatión's internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over fltnancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Governments Auditíng Standards in considering Salem County Special
Services School District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA, P.A.

Licensed Public School Accountant
No.9l5

lavita, C.P.A., R=M-.A.

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA A Professional Assocìation C e rtÍft e d P u b lic A cc o ant anß
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O.2OI7

{.INAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of Salem County Special Services School District's financial performance
provides an overall review of the School District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District's financial performance
as a whole; readers should also review the notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements
to enhance their understanding of the School District's financial performance. The Salem County Special
Services District is considered a Component Unit of Salem County.

X'inancial Highlights

Key financial highlights for 2017 are as follows:

* General revenues accounted for $7,858,796 inrevenue or 41.7%o percent of all revenues. Program
specific revenues in the form ofcharges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital
grants and contributions accounted for $l 1,026,482 or 58.3Vo percent to total revenues of
$ 18,885,278.

* Net position of governmental activities decreased by $1,042,155, comprised primarily of increases in
pension expenses.

A The School District had $19,351,381 in expenses. Of these expenses, $11,026,482 was ofßet by
program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues (primarily tuition
charges) were adequate to provide for these programs.

{. The General Fund had 59,096,022 in revenues,S9,288,469 in expenditures and$472,748 in other
financing sources. The General Fund balance increased by $280,301 over 2016, which included a
transfer in of net position resulting from the closeout of the Summer Program Enterprise Fund. This
increase was anticipated by the Board of Education.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements arc organized so the reader can understand Salem County Special Services School District as a

financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed
look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
whole School District, presenting both an aggregate view of the School district's finances and a longer-term
view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds,
these statements tell how services \¡/ere financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future
spending. In the case of Salem County Special Services School District, the General Fund is the most
significant fund.
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Reporting the School District as a Whole

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provide programs
and activities, the view of the School district as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the
question, "How did we do financially during 20T7?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual
basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis of
accounting takes into account, all ofthe current year's revenues and expenses regardless ofwhen cash is
received or paid.

These two statements report the School District's Net Position and changes in those assets. This change in
net position is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a whole, the financial
positions of the School district has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of
many factors, some financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the current laws and regulations
in New Jersey regarding special education, facility condition and availability, sending districts' need for
varied programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. the School District is divided into two
distinct kinds of activities:

* Governmental activities - All of the School District's programs and services are reported here
including, but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant
facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities.

* Business - Type Activities - This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service enterprise fi.rnd along
with the Shared Services enterprise fund is reported as business activities.

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds

tr'und Financial Statements

The analysis of the School District's major (all) funds begins on page 22. Fund financial reports provide
detailed information about the School District's major funds. The School District uses many funds to
account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund financial statements focus on the
School District's most significant funds. Salem County Special Services School District is unique because
in addition to the major govemmental funds of the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects
Fund and Debt Service Fund there is a series of Enterprise funds entitled Shared Services

Governmental Funds

The School District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. These
funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash
and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The govemmental fund statements
provide a detailed short-term view of the School district's general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or
differences) between govemmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and govemmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.
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Enterprise Fund

The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore these statements
are essentially the same.

The School District as a \ilhole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the School District as a whole.

Table 1 provides a comparative summary of the School District's Net Position for the years ended 2017 and
2016.

Table I
Net Position

2017 2016

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net
Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of debt

Restricted
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

l0_4?7.886 9,946,09r

3,682,786
I,576,877
5,169,223

3,5 I 1,957

987,706
5,446,528

4.897.667 2,536,984

10,813,278

210,185

270,635

7,331,574

11,023,463 7,602,209

r12,673

5,169,223
100,000

(966,133)

5,379,5r2
161,422

(772,741)

4,302,090 S 4,768,193
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Table 2 shows the changes in Net Position from fiscal years 2017 and20T6.

Table2 - Changes inNet Position

mfi
Revenues

Prograns revenues

Charges for seffic,es

Qrrating grants and confibrfiors
CÉneralRevenues

Countytaxes

Tuition
Oflrer

Total Revenues

ProgramF,lçenses
Insfuction
Sryport Services

Pryils and insructional staff
Creneml afrninismfion, school

aeninishtion, hsiness
Operations ard ll&internrrce of Facilities

Pryil Transportation

BrployeeBenefits
Frúerprise Funds

FoodSen¡ice

Otlrer Shared Seruice Frmds

Ottrer

TotalEçenses

kprease (ftuease) in Net Position

Governmental Activities

l&885,278 t7-412.685

3,422,070

670,143

882,686

445,334

41,30r
4,969,776

9r,749
7Jq,749

274,153

mß

7,ffi,256 S

3,420,226

300,000

7,ß8,348
x),448

7,46,736
2,815,343

453,000

6,673,808

23,798

3,861,190

6r,9,862

725,203

4&383
38,597

6,593,930

97,527

6,627,908

nz78T

r9.351.381 17,937,961

(466,103) S (525,276)

As a special services school district, the budget is approved by the Salem County Freeholders. Of the
$18,885,278 in total revenues, $11,026,482 was from program revenues and $7,858,796 was from general
revenues. County taxes made up l.6Yo of revenues for governmental activities for fiscal year 2017, while
tuition charges accounted 39.6% of total governmental activity revenue and miscellaneous revenue
accounted for another 0.5%. Program revenues comprised 58.4% of governmental activity revenue.

The total cost of all program and services was $19,351,381, of which Governmental Activities, net of
$11,026,482 inprograrn revenue, accounted for $9,291,553. Instruction costs of $3,849,025 comprised
41.4% of District Governmental Activity expenses. Student support costs were $669,862 or 7.2Yo,

administration costs werc $725,203 or 7.\yo, plant operation costs were $464,383 or 5.Iyo, transportation
costs were $38,597 or .4Yo, Employee benefits of $3,27I,702 or 35.2%o and depreciation of $272,78I
represents 3.0%.
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The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows a comparison of the total cost of services and the net cost of
services. The net cost shows the financial burden assumed.

Table 3

Total Cost of Net Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of
Services 2017 Services20l7 Services 2016 Services 2016

Instruction
Support services

Pupils and inshuctional staff
General adm inishation, s chool

admi nistration, b usi ness

$ 3,861,190 $ 3,949,025 g 3,422,070 $ 3,407,297

Operation and maintenance of facilities 464,383 464,383 445,334 445,334

669,862 669,862 670,t43 670,143

725,203 725,203 882,686 882,686

38,597 38,597 4r,30t 41,307
6,593,930 3 271,702 4,969,77 6 2,27 0,864

272,781 272,781 274,153 274,153

Pupil Transportation
Employee Benefit Costs

Other

Total Expenses s 12,625,946 $ 9291,553 $ t0,705,463 S 7,991,772

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction
between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and process

of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration and business include expenses associated with administrative
and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and
equipment in an effective working condition.

Curriculum and staff development includes expenses related to planning, research, development and
evaluation of support services, as well as the reporting of this information internally and to the public.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as well
as to and from school activities, as provided by state law.

Extracurricular activities includes expenses related to student activities provided by the School district
which are designated to provide opportunities for students to participate in school events, public events, or a
combination of these for the purposes of motivation, enjoyment and skill improvement.

Interest and fiscal charges involve the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other related
charges to debt of the School District.

Other includes unallocated depreciation and anofüzation.
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Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District's business-type activities (food service program and other enterprises) were
comprised of charges for services and federal and state reimbursements.

* Food service expenses exceeded revenues by 54,735, while combined other enterprise fund revenues
exceeded expenses by $971,389.

.:. Federal and state reimbursements for free and reduced meals were $85,833.

{. Charges for food services were $6,959 or 7.\Yo of total food service revenue. This represents
amount paid by patrons for daily food services.

* Revenue for other enterprises was $7,599,297 consisting of $819,610 inN.J. Dept. of Human
Services fees, $3,183,234 in tuition and $3,596,453 in services provided other LEA's.

The School District's Funds

Information about the School District's major funds starts on page22. These funds are accounted for using
the modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds (i.e., general fund, special revenue fund
and capital projects fund presented in the fund-based statements) had total revenues of $9,108,187 and
expenditures of $9,300,634. The net positive/negative change in General fund balance for the year was an
increase of $280,301. This increase shows that the School District was able to meet current operating costs.
The District may have the need for additional funds in the near future.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the
District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedules
present a suÍìmary of the revenues of the governmental funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, and
the amount and percentage of increases in relation to prior year revenues.

fncrease/ Percent

Percent @ecrease) Increase

Revenue Arnount of Total from2016 (Decrease)

I¡cal Sources $ 7,788,815 85.5% $ 624,721 9%

Federal Sources (r,291) -100%

State Sources 1.319,372 14.5% 194.323 l7%

Total $ 9,108,187 100.0% S 817,753 t0%

The increase in Local Sources is attributed to various increases and decreases but mainly in tuition.
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The following schedule presents a sunìmary of general fund and special revenue fund for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2017.

Expenditures Amount
Percent
of Total

Increase/
(Decrease

2016

Percent
Increase

(Decrease)

r3%
8%

-82%

Currcnt:
Instruction
Undistibuted expenditures

Capital Outlay

Total

$ 3,861,190
5,396,309

43,136

4r.s% g

s8.0%
0.5%

439,120

385,1 13

(191,817)

$ 9,300,634 100% $ 632,416

The increase in Instruction is attributed to the increases in salaries of teachers and related benefit costs.
along with other variances.

The increase in undistributed expenditures is attributed to decreases in student and instruction related
services of $44,723, transportation costs of $8,421 and general school administrative expenditures of
$113,041, offset by and increase to employee benefits of $531,031 and plant operations and maintenance of
s20,267.

The decrease of $191,817 in capital outlay is attributed to less capital expenditures in building
improvements and equipment for the year.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School District's Budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of modified accrual and encumbrance accounting. The most'significant
budgeted fund is the General Fund.

During the course of the fiscal year 2017, the School District amended its General Fund budget as needed.
The School District uses program based budgeting and these budgeting systems are designed to tightly
control total program budgets while providing flexibility for program management in the following areas.

* Staffing changes based on student needs.
* Additional costs for student transportation both in regular education and special education.
.1. Accounting changes in maintenance and operations
å Changes in appropriations to prevent budget oveffuns.

While the District's final general fund budget anticipated that revenues (including fund balance
appropriated) and expenditures would roughly equal, the actual results for the year show an excess of
$280,301.

For the General Fund, the original revenue amount budgeted on Exhibit C-l was $8,803,422, made up of
$300,000 in county tax, $8,501,422 in tuition from LEA's and $2,000 in miscellaneous revenue. There
were no adjustments.

7%
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Actual revenue was 57,776,650, excluding $1,319,372 in On-behalf TPAF Social Security Aid and TPAF
On-behalf Contributions state aid. Therefore, revenues were Sl,026,772less than expected, mostly in tuition
from LEA's.

The final budget basis expenditure appropriation estimate was $8,803,953 compared to the original estimate
of $8,803,422.

There was a positive variance in most line-item expenditures totaling $834,856, excluding reimbursed
TPAF Social Security Aid and TPAF On-behalf Contributions of $1,319,372.

Capital Assets

At the end of the fiscal year 2017, the School District had $5,168,223 invested in land, buildings, machinery
and equipment. Table 4 shows fiscal 2017 balartces comparedto2016.

Table 4

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30

2017 2016

Land $ 50,000$ 50,000
Land Improvements 52,009 55,844

Buildingand Improvements 4,849,630 5,095,289
IWrchinery and Equipment 216,584 245,395

Totals $ 5,168,223 S 5,446,529

Overall capital assets decreased $278,305 from fiscal year2016. The decrease represents depreciation
expense of 5282,963 netted with an addition to Fixed Assets of $4,658 in the governmental activities.

Debt Administration

At June 30,2017, the School District had $210,185 in outstanding debt, which was comprised entirely of
compensated absences.

For the Future

Salem County Special Services School District continues to be in good financial condition in regard to its
budget. Cash flow has improved due to new procedures and protocols put in place within the business
office. The addition of a Human Resource/Special Project position to aid the business office has increased
efficiency, accuracy, and the ability to address issues on a timely basis.

The district continues to dedicate its concept of shared services, entering into collaborative arrangements
that maximizeboth efficiency and effectiveness for school districts in the surroundingarea. The district
continues to provide shared services in the areas of child study team, related services, business
administrator/board secretary, assistant superintendent, and superintendent.
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This past year was the final transition of site-specific programming, whereas the Cumberland Campus has

now been dedicated completely to all types of disabilities. All higher functioning students have now been
moved to the Regional Day School/Salem Campus in order to participate in both pre-vocational and
vocational education. This campus has also allowed for students to participate in community-based
instruction as well as both job shadowing and intemships through the transitional career program and the job
coaches associated with the program. The future will include looking for additional educational space to
house additional students/programs, as both the Cumberland and RDS/Salem Campus are nearing capacity.

The Alternative Middle/High School and Daretown behavioral schools continue to operate and service
behavioral students from across two counties. The district will look at ways to increase enrollment, as the
behavioral disability students enrollment is down. The alternative middlelhigh school continues to accept
many students from Cumberland County into its program and the relocation of the program to the college is
still allowing the students to be in an educationally conducive environment that has shown proven results for
continuing education and better academic performance.

The district as a whole has increased its technology capabilities through incremental technology upgrades
and purchases. The district has leased two school buses in order to decrease its cost in providing both
educational and social outings for the students. In a collaborative approach the district is relocating its
preschool disabled class to another district in order to save districts within the county additional
transportation costs which will allow them to work within their budgets. The district will continue to explore
options to increase effrciency, cost savings, and accuracy.

In closing, the Salem County Special Services School District will continue to dialogue with local districts
in Salem and Cumberland counties to monitor existing programs and to determine how to best meet the
emergent needs that are in alignment with the district's mission.

Contacting the School District's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the School District's finances and to show the School District's accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information please contact John R.
Swain, Superintendent of Schools at Salem County Special Services Board of Education, 880 Route 45, PO
Box 126 Woodstown, NJ 08098 or email jswain@scvts.org.
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DISTRICT \ryIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information
about the District.
These statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for
fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-
type activities of the District.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30.2017

Governmental
Activities

Business-type

Activities

EXHIBIT 4.1

Total
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables, Net

Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Capital Assets, Net (Note 5)

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Outflows

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Due to SCVTS

Uneamed Revenue

Net Pension Liability
Accrued Employee Benefrts

Non-current Liabilities (Note 6):

Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Toral Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Defened Pension Inflows

Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:

Maintenance Reserve

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

1,234,602

326,409

100,000

5,104,583

2,348,184

1,250,469

63,640

3,582,786
1,576,977

100,000

5,168,223

6,765,594 3,662,292 10,427,886

4,997,667 4,897,667

6,740
44,539

37,669
10,568,925

152,766

210,185

2,640 9,380

44,538

37,669

10,568,925

152,766

210,195

11,020,823 2,640 11,023,463

5,104,583

100,000

(4,562,145)

63,640

3,596,012

5,168,223

100,000

(966,133)

642,438 S 3,659,652 S 4,302,090

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2017

Program Revenues

EXHIBIT A-2

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Expenses

Charges Operating
for Grants and

Services Contributions
Governmental

Activities

Business-

type
Activities TotalFunctionsÆrograms

Govemmental Activities:
Instruction:

Special Education

Support Services:

Student & Instruction Related Services

General and Business Admin Services

School Administrative Services

Central Services

Administrative Info Tech. Services

Plant Operations and Maintenance

Pupil Transportation
Employee Benefits

Unallocated Depreciation

Total Govemmental Activities

Business-type Activities:

Food Service

Other Enterprise

Total Business-type Activities

Total Primary Govemment

General R.evenues:

Taxes:

3,861,190

669,862
725,722

342,288
211,707

45,486
464,383

38,597.

6,593,930

272,781

12,165 $

3,322,228

(3,849,025) $

(669,862)
(12s,722)
(342,288)
(211,707)
(45,486)

(464,383)
(38,5e7)

(3,271,702)
(272,781)

(3,849,02s)

(66e,862)
(r25,722)
(342,288)
(2r1,707)

(45,48ó)

(464,383)

(38,597)

(3,271,702)
(272,781)

12,625,946 3,334,393 (9,291,5s3) (9,29t,553)

97,527

6,627,908
6,959

7,599,297

85,833 (4,73s)

97r,389
(4,73s)

971,389

6,725,435 7,606,256 85,833 966,654 966,6s4

$ 19,351,381 $ 7,606,256 g 3,420,226 (9,29t,ss3) 966,654 (8,324,899)

Property Taxes Levied for General Purposes, Net
Tuition Received

Investment Eamings

Transfers

Miscellaneous Income

Total General Revenues, Special ltems, Extraordinary Items and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position-Beginning

Net Position-Ending

300,000

7,468,348
4,358

390,602
86,090

300,000

7,468,348
4,358

86,090

(390,602)

8,249,398 (390,602) 7,858,796

(1,042,155)

1,684,593

576,052

3,083,600

(466,103)

4,768,193

642,438 $ 3,659,652 $ 4,302,090

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund statements and schedules present more detailed information
for the individual fund in a formatthat segregates information by fund.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30.2017

General
Fund

1,069,657

152,766

69,755

247,549

16,ggg

100,000

1,655,726 17,350

Special

Revenue

Fund

EXHIBIT B-1

Total
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash with Fiscal Agent
Interfunds Receivable

Intergovemmental Accounts Receivable

State Aid Receivable

Accounts Receivable - Other

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Due to SCVTS

Interfunds Payable

Uneamed Revenue

Accrued Employee Benefits

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Restricted For:

Maintenance Reserve

Assigned to Year-end Encumbrances

Unassigaed - General Fund

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Position (A-l) are different because:

Capital Assets used in govemmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost

ofthe assets is $10,149,449 and the accumulated depreciation

is $5,044,866 (Note 5).

Deferred Outflow of Resources - Deferred Pension Contribution.

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension Actuarial Gains.

Long Term Net Pension Liability

Long-term Liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and

payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as

liabilities in the funds (see Note 6).

Net Position of Govemmental Activities

13,t77 S

4,173

l,0g l,g34
152,766

69,755

247,549
16,999

4,173
100,000

1,673,076

6,740
44,538

2,329
30,055

152,766

9,736

7,614

6,740
44,538

12,065

37,669
152,766

236,428 17,350 253,778

100,000

1,400

t,317,898

100,000

1,400

I,3 17,898

1,419,298

1,655,726 S 17,350

1,419,298

5, I 04,583

4,997,667

(10,568,925)

(210,1 85)

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

642,438



-zJ-

BALANCE SHEET
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FT]ND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2OT7

General
Fund

Special

Revenue

Fund

EXHIBIT B-2

Total
Governmental

Funds

REVENUES
Local sources:

County Tax Levy
Tuition Charges

Interest on Investments

Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources

Other Sources:

Federal Sources

State Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITTJRES
Current:

Special Education Instruction

Support Services:

Student & Instruction Related Services

General Administrative Expenses

School Administrative Exoenses

Central Services

Administrative Information Tech Serv.

Plant Operations and Maintenance

Pupil Transportation

Employee Benefits

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Defi ciency) of Revenues

over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfer from Enterprise Fund

Prior Year Adjustment - Accounts Receivable

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance-July I

Fund Balance-June 30

300,000

7,46E,348

4,358

3,944 t2,165

300,000

7,469,349

4,359

16,109

7,776,650 t2,165 7,788,815

r,319,372 1,319,372

9,096,022 12,165 9,108,r87

3,949,025

669,862

125,722

342,288

211,707

45,486

464,992

32,880

3,503,371

43,136

12,165 3,861,190

669,862

125,722

342,288

2t1,707
45,486

464,992

32,880

3,s03,371

43,136

9,288,469 t2,t65 9,300,634

(192,447) (192,447)

390,602

82,146

390,602

82,146

472,748

$ 1,419,298 $

472,748

280,301

1,t38,997
280,301

1,138,997

$ 1,419,298

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES.

AND CHANGES IN F'UND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2017

EXHIBIT B-3

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (from B-2) $ 280,301

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement

of Activities (A-2) are different because:

In the Statement of Activities, Compensated Absences represent an operating expense measured by
the additional amount or decreased amount eamed during the year. In the govemmental funds,
expenditures are based on the amount ofresources used and paid. (5,717)

Pension contributions are reported in govemmental funds as expenditures. Howevero in the statement of activities,
the contributions are adjusted for actuarial valuation adjustments, including service and interest costs, administrative
costs, investment retums, and experience/assumption. This is the amount by which net pension liability and defened
inflows/outflows related to pension changed during the period. (1,087,703)

Repayment of Bond Principal or Capital Lease Principal is an Expenditure in the Govemmental Funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of Net Position and is not reported
in the Statement of Activities.
Capital Lease Principal 38,478

In the Statement of Activities, interest expense on debt service is accrued, while only payments

are charged as expenditures in the budget basis financial statements. 609

Capital outlays are reported in govemmental funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost ofthose assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.

Capital Outlays 4,658
Depreciation expense (272,781)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (A-2) $ (1,042,155)

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statemenfs are an integral part of this statement.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY F'UNDS
JUNE 30.2017

EXHIBIT B-4

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Food
Service

23,763 $

5,438

Other
Enterprise

2,324,423

7,245,030

16,549

2,348,186

1,250,468

16,549

Totals

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Interfund Receivable

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Equipment

Less: Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Interfund Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Net Position

Restricted

Invested in Fixed Assets
Unreserved

Total Net Position

29,207 3,586,002 3,675,203

17,373

(17,373)
128,982

(65,342)
146,355

(82,715)

63,640 63,640

29,201 3,649,642 3,678,843

7,504

2,640

9,047

2,640

16,551

7,504 11,687 19,191

21,697

63,640

3,574,315

63,640

3,596,012

21,697 $ 3,637,955 S 3,659,652

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-5

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REYENUES. EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR TEE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2017

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Food

Service

Other Total
Enterprise Enterprise

Operating revenues:

Charges for Services:

Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs:

N.J. Dept. of Human Services - Fees

Tuition
Services Provided Other LEA's

Total Operating Revenue:

Operating Expenses:

Salaries

Employee Benefits
Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Purchased Professional Æduc services

Purchased Professional Services

Purchased Property services

Other Purchased Services

Communications Telephone
Supplies and Materials
General Supplies
Travel
Transportation

Other Objects
Cleaning /Repair /Ivlaintenance
Insurance
Depreciation

urilities

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):

State Sources:

State School Lunch Prosram
Federal Sources:

National School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Contributions & Transfers

Transfers

Change in Net Position

Total Net Position-Beginning

TotalNet Position-Endine

92.459

97,527 6,627,908 6,72s,435

(90,só8) 971,389 880,821

6,959 $

819,610

3,183,234

3,596,453

6,959

819,610

3,183,234

3,596,453

6,959 7,599,297 7,606,2s6

5,068

4,033,429

1,638,62s

1,178

498,249

24,2t6
I11,618

30,324

3,368

12,720

39,829

6,120

37,330

r0,808

102,780

10,000

10,182

57,132

4,033,429

1,638,625

93,637

498,249

24,216

I I 1,618

30,324

3,368

12,720

44,897

6,120

37,330

10,808

102,780

10,000

10,t82
57,t32

1,024

28,933

55,876

1,024

28,933

55,876

85,833 85,833

(4,735) 97t,389

(390,602)

966,6s4

(390,602)

(4,73s)

26,432

580,787

3,057,168

s76,052

3,083,600

21,697 $ 3,637,9s5 $

The accornpanying Notes to Financial Sfatements are an integral part of this statemenf.

3,6s9,6s2
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SALEM COTINTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FTJNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2OI7

Food

Service

EXHIBIT 8-6

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTTVITIES
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Employees

Payments for Employee Benefits

Payments to Suppliers

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Cash from (Used for) Operating Activities-
Transfers to the General Fund

Total Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

State Sources

Federal Sources

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Non-capital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Capital Assets

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INTVESTING ACTTVITIES
Interest and Dividends

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances-Beginning of Year

Balances-End of Year

Reconciliation ofoperating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to R.econcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:

Depreciation
(Increase) Decreæe in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in lnterfund Receivable

Increase (Decreæe) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Interfund Payable

Total Adjustrnents

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

18,473 $ 7,095,848
(4,024,382)
(1,638,62s)

(104,368) (943,49s)

Other
Enterprise

Total
Enterprise

7,114,32t
(4,024,382)
(1,638,62s)

(1,047,863)

(85,89s) 489,346 403,451

(390,602) (390,602)

(8s,89s) 98,744 12,849

r,024
84,809

t,024
84,809

85,833 85,833

(62)

23,82s

98,744

2,225,679

98,682

2,249,504

23,763 $ 2,324,423 $ 2,348,186

(90,s68) $

tt,5t4

(6,841)

97t,389 $

1 0,1 82

(486,900)

(16,s49)
2,177
9,047

880,821

1 0,1 82

(47s,386)
(16,s49)

2,177
2,206

4,673 (482,043) (477,370)

(8s,89s) $ 489,346 $

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

403,45t
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30.2017

Memorial
Expendable

Trust

EXHIBIT 8.7

Agency

Fund

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Payable to Student Groups
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Interfund Payable

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Held in Trust for Unemployment

Claims and Other Purposes

1,097 $ 9r,455

1,097 91,455

20,895

12,872

57,688

97,455

r,097

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-8

SALEM COI]NTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY I\¡"ET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FORTHE YEARENDED JI]NE 30.2017

Memorial
Expendable

Trust
ADDITIONS

Contributions:
Plan member

Interest Income

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS

Withdrawals from Investments

Total Deductions

Change inNet Position

Net Position-Beginning of the Year

Net Position-End of the Year

$1

$ 1,097

I

1,096

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY

A. Reportine Entity:

The Salem County Special Services School District is a Type I district located in the County of Salem, State
of New Jersey. As a Type I district, the School District consists of appointed officials and is responsible for
the fiscal control of the district. A superintendent is appointed by the board and is responsible for the
administrative control of the district. The purpose of the district is to educate special needs students in Salem
County. The enrollment at June 30, 2017 was 263 students.

The Agency is considered to be a "Component Unit" of the County Of Salem under GAAP. This
determination is based on the oversight responsibility of the County, which manifests itself primarily in the
selection of District Board members, the accountability on fiscal matters, the approval for debt authorizations
and the determination of county tax provided by the county.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100
of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is whether:

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units.

B. New Accounting Standards:

The School District has adopted the following GASB statements:

objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about postemployment benefits
other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose external
financial reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing
accountability. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing
standards of accounting and financial reporting for all postemployment benefits þensions and OPEB)
with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and
interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. The requirements of this Statement will be
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016. The adoption of GASB 74, did nof
impact the financial statements of the School District.



-3 l-

SALEM COTJNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

B. New Accounting Standards (Continued):

The School District has adopted the following GASB statements:

accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing recognition
and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016.
Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 8l on the School District's
financial statements. The adoption of GASB 81, did not impact the financial statements of the School
District.

Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial
Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73,
Accounting and Financial Reportingþr Pensions and Related Assets Thøt Are Not within the Scope of
GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68.
Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related measures
in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations
from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the
classification of payments made by employers to satisff employee (plan member) contribution
requirements. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2016. The adoption of GASB 82, will impact the financial statements of the School District.

Other accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impact on
the financial statements include:

Pensions: The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and frnancial reporting by
state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment
benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers
about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting
for all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful
information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional
transparency. The requirements of this Statement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2017. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 75 on the
School District's financial statements. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption
of GASB 75 onthe School District's financial statements.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'DI

B. New Accounting Standards (Continued):

financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable
liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A govemment that has legal
obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should
recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement. The requirements of Statement will be
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Management is evaluating the potential
impact of the adoption of GASB 83 on the School District's financial statements.

the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those
activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of
all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (l) whether a government is
controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary
relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identiff fiduciary component units and
postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The requirements of Statement will
be effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Management is evaluating the
potential impact of the adoption of GASB 84 on the School District's financial statements.

been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement
addresses avafiety of topics including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value
measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment
benefits [OPEB]). The requirements of Statement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2017. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 85 on the
School District' s financial statements.

improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by
providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing
resources-resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt-are placed in an irrevocable trust for
the sole pu{pose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting
for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is
defeased in substance. The requirements of Statement will be effective for reporting periods beginning
after June 15,2017. Management is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 86 on the
School District's financial statements.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIF'ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

B. New Accounting Standards (Continued):

financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments.
This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring recognition
of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the
contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize
a lease receivable and a deferred inflow ofresources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency
of information about governments' leasing activities. The requirements of Statement will be effective
for reporting periods beginning after periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Management is
evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of GASB 87 on the School District's financial
statements.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIF'ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Presentation

The District's basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements, including a statement of Net
Position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of
financial information.

District-wide Statements: The statement of Net Position and the statements of activities display information
about the financial activities of the overall district, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been
made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business-type actívities of the District. Governmental activities generally are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the govemmental and business-type
activities of the District at the fiscal year end while the statement of activities presents a comparison between
direct expenses and program revenues for each different business-type activity of the District and for each
function of the District's governmental activities.

are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expenses-expenses of the District related to
the administration and support of the District's programs, such as personnel and accounting-are not
allocated to programs.

programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including
all taxes and state formula aid, arc presented as general revenues.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

A. Basis of Presentation (Continued):

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the School District segregates transactions related to
certain School District functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to
demonstrate legal compliance. The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds,
including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary - are presented. The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New
Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option noted in GASB
No. 34, paragraphT6. The NJDOE believes that the presentation of all funds as major is important for public
interest and to promote consistency among district financial reporting.

B. Fund Accountinq:

The accounts of the District are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting to ensure
observance of limitations and restrictions on the resources available. The principles of fund accounting
require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds in accordance with
activities or objectives specified for the resources. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled.

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPE

The focus of govemmental fund measurement is upon determination of financial position and changes in
financial position (sources, uses and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The
district reports the following major govemmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional equipment which are classified in
the Capital Outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes budgeted Capital Outlay
in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that
General Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long
as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay pu{poses are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district
taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions to
capital assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or
remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from and
to Current Expense by board resolution.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

B. Fund Accountins (Cont'd):

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
from State and Federal Government, (other than major capital projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds)
and local appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Proiects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial resources to be used
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds).
The financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by
the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund - As the district is a Type I district, all bonded debt is the direct obligation of the Board
of Chosen Freeholders of the County of Salem.

PROPRIETARY FT]ND TYPE

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, fînancial position and cash
flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private
sector. The following is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the District:

Enterprise (Food Service) Funds - The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises -- where the intent of the District is
that the costs (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the
students on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the District
has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

The District's Enterprise Funds are comprised of Food Service, Related Services, Child Study, One on One
Aides, Non-public Services, Early Intervention and the Regional Day School.

These enterprise funds accounts for all revenues and expenses pertaining to their operations in a manner
similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (Statement G-2) of providing services
to students on a continuing basis is financed or recovered primarily through lesson charges.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement focus.
This means that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or noncuffent, associated with their activity are
included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund equity (net position) is segregated into contributed
capital and unreserved retained earnings, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating statements present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net position.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

B. Fund Accountins (Cont'd):

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against their
operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been
provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as

follows:
Food Service Fund Equipment 12 Years

Internal Service Fund - The Intemal Service Funds account for all revenue and expenditures pertaining to
goods or services provided to other local educational associations, or to other governmental units, on a cost-
reimbursement basis. While the internal service funds revenues are intended to recoup expenses, they are
accounted for essentially the same as private business enterprises.

The district does not maintain an internal service fund.

FIDUCIARY FT]ND TYPE

Fiduciary Funds include Expendable Trust, Nonexpendable Trust and Agency Funds. The measurement
focus of the Expendable Trust Funds is the same as for governmental funds. The measurement focus of the
Nonexpendable Trust Funds is similar to Proprietary Funds. Agency Funds are purely custodial (assets equal
liabilities) and thus do not involve measurement of results of operations. The following is a description of
the Fiduciary Funds of the School District:

Trust and Agency Funds - The Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the District
in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other
funds.

Expendable Trust X'und - An Expendable Trust Fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner as the
governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting. Expendable Trust
Funds account for assets where both the principal and interest may be spent. The district maintains one
Expendable Trust Fund named the Memorial Expendable Trust Fund.

Nonexpendable Trust Fund - A Nonexpendable Trust Fund is used to account for assets held under the
terms of a formal trust agreement, whereby the District is under obligation to maintain the trust principal.
The District does not maintain a Nonexpendable Trust Fund.

Agency tr'unds - Agency funds are used to account for the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as

their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.
Agency funds include payroll and student activities funds.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIF'ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

C. Basis of Accountinq and Measurement Focus:

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statements.

DÌstrict-wide, Proprtetary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The District-wide financial statements
are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of
accounting; the enterprise fund and fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the
accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of
unearned revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are
susceptible to accrual as under the New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to its school
district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year.
The District records the entire approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the
revenue is both measurable and available.

The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is
considered to be an "accounts receivable". Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in
the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisf,red.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recognized when measurable and available. "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used
to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated
absences, which are recognized as expenditures in govemmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt
and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

In its accounting and financial reporting, the District follows the pronouncements of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) and its predecessor orgarizations issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with
or contradict GASB pronouncements. The District's proprietary funds have elected not to apply the standards
issued by FASB afterNovember 30, 1989.

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating results of proprietary
fund types and nonexpendable trust funds. Under this method, revenues are recognized in the accounting
period in which they are eamed and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.
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SALEM COT]NTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOTJNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

D. BudsetsÆudsetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring ofeach year for the general, special revenue, and debt
service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and are voted upon at the annual
school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of
accounting, except for the special revenue fund as described later. The legal level of budgetary control is
established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most
specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
6:20-24.2 (m) 1. TransfersofappropriationsmaybemadebySchoolBoardresolution atany timeduringthe
fiscal year. The Board of Education did not make any material supplemental budgetary appropriations during
the fiscal year.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during
the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of
accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the special revenue fund as
noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in
the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis.
The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis
financial reports.

Schedule C-3 presents a reconciliation of the special revenue funds from the budgetary basis of accounting as

presented in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget
and Actual - General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds to the GAAP basis of accounting as
presented in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All
Governmental Fund Types.

E. Encumbrances:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in
govemmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, are reported as reservations of fund balances at
fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to
unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, for which the District has received advances, are reflected in
the balance sheet as uneamed revenues at fiscal year end. The encumbered appropriation authority carries
over into the next fiscal year.

An entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the
certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

F. Tuition Receivable:

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are subject
to adjustment when the final costs have been determined. The tuition adjustments related to the 2014-15 and
2015-16 f,rscal years were computed based on the certified rates as provided by the New Jersey Department of
Education and invoiced to the various sending districts. The district will recognize this adjustment in the next
school year.

G. Tuition Payable:

Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2015-16 and 2016-17 werc based on rates established by the receiving
district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

H. fnventories and Prepaid Expenses:

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise
fund are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase.

On district-wide financial statements and in the Enterprise Fund inventories are valued at cost, which
approximates market, using the first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the Enterprise Fund
represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2017.

I. Short -Term Interfund ReceivablesÆavables:

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or
services rendered tolfrom a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

J. Assets, Liabilities and Equity:

Transactions - Interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods
or services rendered tolfrom a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

Inventories - On district-wide financial statements and in the enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost,
which approximates market, using the first-in-first-out (FIFO) method and is expended when used. Prepaid
expenses in the Enterprise Fund represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods
beyond June 30, 2017.

The Food Service Fund had no inventory on hand at June 30,2017.

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required by the Single Audit Law of
1986, as revised) is the difference between market value and cost of the commodities at the date of purchase
and has been included as an item of non-operating revenue in the financial statements. The District did not
receive federal commodities during the2016-2017 school year.
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J. Assets, Liabilities and Equitv (Cont'd):

Capital Assets - General fixed assets acquired or constructed during the year are recorded at actual cost.
Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. The general fixed
assets acquired or constructed prior to June 30,2017 are valued at cost based on historical records or through
estimation procedures performed by an independent appraisal company. General fixed assets are reflected as
expenditures in the applicable govemmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the general fixed
assets account group. Expenditures that enhance the asset or significantly extend the useful life of the asset
are considered improvements and are added to the fixed asset's currently capitalized cost. The cost of normal
repairs and maintenance are not capitalized. Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not
depreciated.

Capital assets are depreciated in the district-wide financial statements using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class
Estim ated

U seful Lives

School Building
Building Improvements
Equipment

30-s0
20

5-l 0

K. Compensated Absences:

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave, and
sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services akeady rendered, and
that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, is
accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services,
or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, are
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

In governmental and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported as expenditure and fund liability in the fund that will
pay for the compensated absences. The remainder of the compensated absences liability is reported in the
General Long-Term Debt Account Group.

In proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense and liability of the
fund that will pay for them.

While it is the current policy of the Salem County Special Services School District not to compensate
employees for vacation and sick leave upon termination, there are compensated absences reported in the
amount of $210,185 at June 30,2017.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

L. Unearned Revenue:

Unearned revenue represents cash that has been received but not yet earned.

M. Operating Revenues and Expenses:

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the enterprise
fund. For the School District, these revenues are sales for food service. Operating expenses are necessary
costs incured to provide the service that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund.

N. Allocation of Indirect Exrrenses:

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses are allocated to functions but are not reported
separately in the Statement of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer's share of social
security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated based on salaries of that
program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically identified by function and is included in
the indirect expense column of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed
to a specific function is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of
Activities. Interest on long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the
Statement of Activities.

O. Extraordinary and Special ltems:

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in occuffence.
Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of management and are either unusual in
nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal year.

P. Long-term Oblisations:

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources have been
accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other long-term
obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is
reported as a fund liability of a govemmental fund.

Q. Other Fund Equity:

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund capital contributed to the proprietary funds from other
funds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not available for appropriation for expenditure or
legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent plans for future use of
financial resources.
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R. Comparative Data/Reclassifications :

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in selected sections of the accompanying
financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the District's financial position
and operations. Also, certain immaterial amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in
order to be consistent with the current year's presentation.

S. Manaqement Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

T. Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Oblisations:

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the District-wide financial
statements. Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources
have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other long-term
obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is
reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund.

U. Net Position:

Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net Position invested in capital assets,
net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Net Position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by the School District or through extemal restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, or laws or regulations of other govemments. The School District's policy is to first apply restricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted Net Position is
available.

V. Fund Balance Reserves:

The School District reserves those portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a specific future
use or which do not represent available expendable resources and, therefore, are not available for
appropriation or expenditure. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion which is available for
appropriation in future periods. A fund balance reserve has been established for encumbrances.
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\il. Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions:

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value,
is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is
recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means the
resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year or aïe expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty
days ofthe fiscal year end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal value in
return, include property taxes, income taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On the accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from
income taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is earned.

Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirerneqts include timing requirements, which specify the
year when the resources are required to be used or for the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching
requirements, in which the School District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose;
and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the School District on a reimbursement
basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before
it can be recognized. Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered both
measurable and available at fiscal year end: property taxes available as an advance, interest, and tuition.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they
may invest in. New Jersey statute l8A.,20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be
purchased by New Jersey school districts.

X. Lease Acquisition Costs:

As part of any long-term lease agreement,
professional lease acquisition and other
accordance with GASB Statement No. 65.

providing for the use of school buildings, payments constituting
related professional fees will be expensed when incurred in

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest.
U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when
purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONT'D)

Investments are stated at cost, or amortized cost, which approximates market. The amortized cost method
involves valuing security at its cost on the date of purchase and thereafter assuming a constant amofüzation
to maturity for any discount or premium. The Board classifies certificates of deposit, which have original
maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from the date of purchase, as
investments.

Deposits: N.J.S.A. 17:9-41, et seq. require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories
located in New Jersey, which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings
and Loan Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made in
public depositories. School districts are also permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey
Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statues require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed
depository insurance limits where the market value of the collateral must equal at least 5Yo of the average
daily balance of collected public funds on deposit.

Deposits In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75Yo of the
capital funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to
100% of the amount exceeding 75%. All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York, the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking
institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capitalfunds of not less than $25,000,000.

Investments: New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities:

a. Bonds or other obligations of the Unites States or obligations guaranteed by the United States.

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National
Mortgage Agency or of any United States Bank for Cooperatives, which have a maturity date no
greater than twelve months from the date of purchase.

c. Bonds of other obligations of the school district.

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District's
deposits may not be recovered. Although the School does not have a formal policy regarding custodial credit
risk, NJSA 17:9-41 t seq. requires that the governmental units shall deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
(GUDPA). GUDPA is a supplemental insurance program set forth by the New Jersey Legislature to protect
the deposits of local government agencies. The program is administered by the Commissioner of the NJ
Department of Banking and Insurance. Under the Act, the first $250,000 of governmental deposits in each
insured depository is protected by FDIC. Funds owned by the District in excess of FDIC insured amounts are
protectedbyGUDPA. AsofJune30,20lT,theSchoolDistrict'sbankbalanceof$4,448,969wasexposedto
custodial credit risk as follows:
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Insured S

Uninzured and collateralized with
securities held by pledging financial institutions

250,000

4,lgg,969

4,448,969

New Jersey Cash Management Fund - All investments in the Fund are govemed by the regulations of the
Investment Council, which prescribe specific standards designed to insure the quality of investments and to
minimize the risks related to investments. In all the years of the Division of Investment's existence, the
Division has never suffered a default of principal or interest on any short-term security held by it due to the
bankruptcy of a securities issuer; nevertheless, the possibility always exists, and for this reason a reserve is
being accumulated as additional protection for the "Other-than-State" participants. In addition to the Council
regulations, the Division sets further standards for specific investments and monitors the credit of all eligible
securities issuers on a regular basis. As of June 30, 2017, the District had no funds on deposit with the New
Jersey Cash Management Fund.

NOTE 4. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOT]NT

Capital Reserve Accounts may be established by New Jersey school districts for the accumulation of funds
for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. A capital reserve account is maintained in
the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget. Funds placed in the Capital
Reserve Account are restricted to capital projects in the Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon
submission of the LRFP to the NJ Department of Education, a district may increase the capital reserve by
appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at
year end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both. The District
did not have a capital reserve account as ofJune 30,2017.
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

C4ital assd activify for tre year sded June 30,2017 was as follous:

Bqinniry
Bahnce

Governnpntal activitþs :

Capital Aseß tlat are not being dqreciaÞd:
Lmd $ 50"000 $

Additions

Adjrstmenß/
Rdirernenß

Endiry
Bahnce

50,000

Total Capital Assds not beirg Deprecited

I:nd Impovønqrts

Building ard Building Inprorænrnts
lvfachinery and Equipmort

Totals at Historical Co$

Iæss Accum.rlded Depreci*ion for :

Land Improvonents

Building ard Improvennnß

Equipnrnt
Total Accrmul*ed Dçreciatbn

Total Capital Assets being Dryreciatd
NIet of Accrmul*ed Dryreciation

Governnrcnt acúivities ca¡rital asseß, nef

Bwincs.Type Activities - Equiprnent

kss Accum¡læed Deprecidion for :

Business-T1pe Adivities

CapialAssøs-Net

50,000

146,854

9,535,022

4l2,gl5 4,659
10,094,791 4ßsg

50,000

146,954

9,535,022

417,573

t0,w9A49

(n2,781)

(272J8t)

$ 5,372,706 S (268,123) $

Dçreciation expuse was charged to govunnrnbl ftnctons as follor¡s:
Unallocated

(91,010) (3,835)
(4,439,733) (245þ59)
(241342\ (23287\

(4,772,095)

5,322,706

(94,U5)
(4,6853n)

Q64,629\
(5,M4,96)

5,054,583

5,104,593

To A-1

272,781

146,3:55 S

(72,533) (10,182)

146,355

(82,715)

73,822 $ (10,182) $ 63,&0
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During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the following changes occurred in long-term obligations:
Amounß

Brding Duewithin Long-term
Reductions Balance One Year Portion

Beginning

Balance Aditions

Governmental Activities:

Capital Lease payrable:

OtherLiabilities:
C-ompensaÞd absences palable
Total olher liabilities

Rrsincs-Type Adivities
C-omperxaed absence s payable

67p16 $

175930 34.2s5

(67,016) $ -

210.185 210.185

s 242946 S 34,255 $ (67,016) $ 210,185 $ $ 210,185

A. Bonds Payable - Bonds are authorizedin accordance with State law by the voters of the District through
referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds
issued by the District are general obligation bonds.

The Board of Special Services is a Type I School District under New Jersey Statutes. Therefore, all bonded
debt is generally accounted for and anticipated to be financed by the County of Salem.

On April 13,2016, the County of Salem issued Special Services School Refunding Bonds, Series 2016, in the
amount of $3,885,000, of which $270,000 was redeemed during 2016-17. These Bonds were issued for the
purpose of advance refunding $3,615,000 of outstanding principle on the County's Special Services School
Bonds, Series 2008, maturing October 1,2019 through 2028 and certain costs associated with the issuance of
the Bonds. The remaining bonds not refunded were $1,065,000. The combined principal and interest
remaining on the Bonds is presented for "Memorandum Only" purposes as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

202s-26
2026-27

2027-28

2028-29

Total

305,000 $

320,000

330,000

340,000

355,000

360,000

375,000

385,000

395,000

405,000

410,000

405,000

147,094 S

132,561

120,136

108,386

98,036

87,288

72,588

59,313

47,613

35,107

21,351

7,088

452,094

452,561

450,136

448,386

453,036

447,288

447,588

444,313

442,613

440,107

431,357

472,088

4,385,000 $ 936,:567 $ 5,321,561



_48_

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT (CONT'D)

A. Bonds Payable (Cont'd)

In addition, the State of New Jersey will provide aid in the amount of 55.38% of the Debt Service on the
County Bonds. The required payments by the District to the County pursuant to "4" above are subject to the
availability and annual appropriation of sufficient funds required to meet the obligation.

B. Capital Leases

During the 2015-16 fiscal school year, the District acquired Various Technology and Playground Equipment,
along with Vehicles through aCapital Lease totaling 8209,173, with interest at 1.573%o. The District made its
final principle and interest payment on this lease duringthe2016-17 School Year.

NOTE 7. OPERATING LEASES

Three classrooms and related facilities are currently rented at the Upper Pittsgrove School for the period of
July 1, 2017 to June 30,2018, atatotal cost of $52,632.

On December 16,2014, a lease agreement was signed for the use of various facilities and one fieldhouse
office within the Salem Community College. The lease agreement is in effect for the period of July 1,2017
through June 30, 2018, at a cost of$102,000.

The District also has outstanding lease agreements for eight copiers. Future minimum lease payments are as

follows:
Year Ending

June 30 Amount

2017-18 $ 13.430

2018-19 6,723

Total $ 20.153

NOTE 8. MAINTENANCE RESERVE

The District has an approved maintenance reserve with a balance of $100,000, which is in agreement with the
Local Facilities Plannine Document.
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the School District are covered by either the Public
Employees'Retirement System (PERS) or the Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) which have been
established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits
(Division)' According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will
be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly
available financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for
the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund. These reporrs may
be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box295, Trenton, New Jersey ,0g625.

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS and TpAF:
Tier Definition
I Members who are enrolled prior to July 1,2007.
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July l, 2007 andprior to November 2,2008.
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2,2008 and prior to May 22,2010.
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after Mray 22,2010 and prior to June 28, 201l.
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June2ï,20ll.

Public Employees' Retirement System

The PERS is a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benef,rt pension plan that was established in 1955. The PERS
provides retirement, death and disability, and medical benefits to qualified members.

Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tiers
I and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement
benefits of l/60th of final a.verage salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon
reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tiers I
and2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 before age 62with}S or more years of service credit and
tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for
each month that a member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement
benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced benefit from ase
55 to age 60 ifthey have at least 25 years ofservice.

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS),
respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating
25 yeats of credited service or on a disability retirement. P .L. 2007 , c. I 03 amended the law to eliminate the
funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the PERS. It created separate funds outside of the
pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State employees
and retired educational employees. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in
accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a pre-funding
basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994. The State is also responsible for the cost
attributable to Chapter 126,P.L.1992, which provides free health benefits to members of PERS who retired
from a municipality with 25 years of service.

Vesting and BenefÎt Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:I5A
and 43.38. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits that vest after 25 years of
service or under the disability provisions of PERS.
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Public Employees' Retirement System (Continued)

Contributions - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A . 43:.15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter I 15,
P.L. of 1997 andN.J.S.A. l8:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing employers.
Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. PERS
provides for employee contributions of 7.06% through June 30, 2016 and 7.20% thereafter of employees'
annual compensation, as defined. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in
PERS. The current PERS rate is 12.46% of covered payroll. The District's contributions to PERS for the
years ended June 30, 2077, and 2076, were $322,451 and 5268,393 respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living
adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums.

The total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $8,843,986. Payroll covered by PERS was $2,541,161 for
fiscal year 2017.

Information regarding contributions made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the District is not available.
Contributions to the system for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

PERS

Employees S 182,964

District 322,451

rotal $ _!q!l1l
The District is billed annually for its normal contribution plus any accrued liability. These contributions were equal to
the required contributions for 2017, as follows:

Public Employees Retirement System

X'iscal

Year
Normal

Contribution
Accrued Total Funded by

State
Paid by
DistrictLiability Liability

2017 s 49,589 $ 252,363 $ _ 322!sl_ g N/A s L22AÐ_
Components of Net Pension Liabilify - At June 30,2017, the District's proportionate share of the PERS net
pension liability was $10,568,925. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,2016. The total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined using update procedures to roll
forward the total pension liability from an actuarial valuation as of June 30,2016, to the measurement date of
June 30, 2016. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District's actual
contributions to the plan relative to the total of all participating employers' contributions for the year ended
June 30, 2016. The District's proportion measured as of June 30,2016 was 0.035685% which was an increase
of 0.00447%o ftom its proportion measured as of Jun e 30, 2015 .
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Public Employees' Retirement System (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources - The District's 2017 PERS pension
expense, with respect to GASB 68, was 51,458,766. The District's2017 deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources were from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 196,550 $
Changes of assumptrons
Net difference between projected and actual eamings

on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Total

2,189,3r7

$ 4,897,667 $

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year PERS
2018 $ 1,069,409
2019 1,069,409
2020 1.138.939

403,003
1,786,346

322.451

2021
2022

Thereafter

949,034
348,427

Total $ 4,575,216

AdditÍonal Information - Collective Balances atJune 30.2077 and20I6 are as follows:

Year 613012017 613012016

Collective defened outflows of resources $ 4,897,667 $ 2,536,984
Collective defened inflows of resources $ $ 112,673
Collective Net Pension Liability

District's Proportion

$ t0,568,925 $ 2,007,866

0.035685% 0.031218%
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Public Employees' Retirement System (ContÍnued)

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was determined
by an acfiiarial valuation as of July 1, 2015, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2016. This actuarial
valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the rneasurement:

PERS

Measurement Date

Actuarial Valuation Date
Investment Rate of Return
Salary Scale (Based on Age):

Through2026
Thereafter

Inflation

June 30,2016

July 1,2015
7.6:5Yo

r.65% - 4.15%
2.65% - 5.15%

3.08%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Preretirement Mortality Table for male
and female active participants. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for males and
females. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for females. In
addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a
generational approach based on the plan actuary's modihed MP-2014 projection scale. Post-retirement
mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healtþ Male and Female Mortality Tables (set back I
year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and a one-year static
projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements and
beneficiaries of former members provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013
using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Disability
retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table (set

back 3 years for males and set forward I year for females).

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1,2011 to June 30, 2014. It is likely that future experience will not
exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions,
the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the larger
the impact on future financial statements.
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JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Public Employees' Retirement System (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-teffn expected rate
of return on plan investments is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of
trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of refurn for each major asset class
included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2076 are summarized in the following
table:

Asset Class

PERS

Target Long-TermExpected
Allocation Real Rate of Return

Cash

US Treasuries

Investment Grade Credit

Mortgages

High Yield Bonds

Infl ation-Indexed Bonds

Broad US Equities

Developed Foreþ Equities

Emerging Market Equities

Private Equity

Hedge Funds/Absolute Return

Real Estate (Propeúy)

Commodities

Global Debt ex US

REIT

Total

s.00%

1.50%

8.00%

2.00%

2.00%

t.50%
26.00%

13.25%

6.50%

9.00%

12.50%

2.00%

0.50%

5.00%

5.25%

0.87%

1.74%

L79o/o

l.67Yo

456%
3.44%

8.53o/o

6.83%

99s%
t2.40%
4.68%

6.9lYo

5.45%

-0.25%

s.63%

100.00%

Discount Rate - The discount rate as of June 30,2016 used to measure the total pension liability was
3.98yo for PERS. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments of 7.6'5%o and a municipal bond rate of 2.85yo as of June 30,
2016 based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be
made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State employer contributed
30Yo of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employers contribute d lÙOyo of their
actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's frduciary net position
was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members
through 2034 for PERS. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was
applied to projected benefit payments through 2034 and the municipal bond rate was applied to
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Public Employees' Retirement System (Continued)

Sensitivify of the Collective Net Pension Liabilify to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following
presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of June 30, 2016, calculated
using the discount rate as disclosed above, as well as what the collective net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (2.98%) or l-percentage-point higher
(4.98%) than the current rate:

District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $

l% Current
Decrease Discount
(2.e8%) (3.e8%)

t%
Increase
(4.e8%)

$ ___ 36o2;2e_12,950,984 $ 10,568,925

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund

The TPAF was established as of January 1,1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. l8A:66 to provide
retirement benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers'
Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with
a special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New
Jersey on behalf of the District and the system's other related non-contributing employers. Membership is
mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of
Examiners, and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that arc unclassified, professional
and certified.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 184:66. TPAF
provides retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for
medical benefits, which vest after 25 yearc of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members
are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for
2o/o of related interest eamed on the contributions. In the case of death before retirement. members'
beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members'accounts.

Contributions - The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In
accordance with Chapter 62,P.L. 1994, plan members enrolled in the Public Employees' Retirement System
were required to contribute 5.5Yo of their annual covered salary. Effective July 1, 2011, however, in
accordance with Chapter 78,P.L.2011, plan members are required to contribute 6.5Yo of their annual covered
salary. For employees enrolled in the retirement system prior to July 1, 2007, the increase is effective with
the payroll period that begins immediately after July l, 2007. The State Treasurer has the right under the
current law to make temporary reductions in member rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in
the retirement system; however, statute also requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension
assets no longer exist.
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Teacherso Pension and Annuity Fund (Continued)

Contributions (Continued) - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 184:66 and requires contributions
by active members and contributing employers. Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, the
active member contribution rate increased fuom5.5%o of annual compensation to 6.5% plus an additional lYo
phased-in over 7 years beginning in July 2012. The member contribution rate was 7 .34%o in State fiscal year
2017. The phase-in of the additional incremental member contribution rate takes place in July of each
subsequent State fiscal year. The State's pension contribution is based on an actluafially determined amount
which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and anamofüzation of the unfunded accrued liability.
Funding for noncontributory group insurance benef,rts is based on actual claims paid. For fiscal year 2015,the
State's pension contribution was less that the actuarial determined amount. Under current statute, all
employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on-behalf of the District and all other related
non-contributing employers. No normal or accrued liability contribution by the District has been required
over several preceding fiscal years. These on-behalf contributions by the State ofNew Jersey are considered a
special funding situation, under the definition of GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions.

The District was not required to make any contributions to the pension plan during the fiscal year ended June
30,2017 because of the 100% special funding situation with the State of New Jersey.

Trend Information for TPAF (Paid on-behalf of the District)

Year
X'unding
6130n7
6t30n6
6130lts

Annual
Pension

Percentage
of APC

Cost (APC) Contributed
s 524,546 100

750,001
694,599

Net
Pension

Oblieation
%$N/A

N/A
N/A

100

100

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the State of New Jersey contributed $524,546 to the TPAF for
pension contributions, $437,066 for post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School and 52,640 for long-
term disability. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 184:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District
$355,120 during the year ended June 30, 2017 for the employer's share of social security contributions for
TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries.

Components of Net Pension Liability - At June 30,2017, the District was not required to report a liability
for its proportionate share of the net pension liability because of a l00Yo reduction for State of New Jersey
pension support provided to the District.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions to/deductions from the TPAF's fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For this pu{pose, benef,rt
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at a fair value.
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Teachers' Pension and Annuify Fund (Continued)

Pension Expense - For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of $2,527,402
and revenu e of 52,527,402 for support provided by the State.

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of July 1,2015, which was rolled forward to June 30,2016. This actuarial valuation used the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

TPAF'

Measurement Date

Actuarial Valuation Date
Investment Rate of Retum
Salary Scale (Based on Age):

Through 2026
Thereafter

Inflation

June 30, 2016

July 1,2015
7.65%

Varies based
on experience

2.50%

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30,2016 are suÍrmarized in the following table:

Asset Class

TPAF

Target Long-TermExpected
Allocation Real Rate of Return

Cash

U.S. Govemment Bonds

U.S. Credit Bonds

U.S. Mortgages

U.S. Inflation-Indexed Bonds

U.S. High Yield Bonds

U.S. Equity Bonds

Foreign Developed Equity

Emerging Market Equities

Private Real Estate Property

Timber

Farmland

Private Equity

Commodities

Hedge Funds - MultiStratery

Hedge Funds - Equrty Hedge

Hedge Funds - Distressed

Total

s.00%

1.50yo

13.00%

2.00%

1.50%

2.00%

26.00o/o

13.25%

650%
5.25%

1.00%

1.00%

9.00%

0.:50yo

5.00%

3.75%

3.7s%

0.39%

1.28%

2.76%

2.38o/o

t.4t%
4.7ÙYo

5.14%

5.9t%
8.16%

3.64%

3.86%

4.39%

8s7%
2.87%

330%

4.72%

3.49%

r00.00%
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NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (Continued)

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was3.22Yo as of June 30,2016.
This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7 .650/o and a municipal bond rate of 2.85o/o as of June 30,2016 based on the Bond Buyer Go
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an
averæe rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed
that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The
State contributed 30% of the actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan
members through 2029. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to
projected benefit payments through 2029 and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit
payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - As indicated above,
TPAF has a special funding situation where the State pays I00% of the District's annual required
contribution.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits financial report.
Information on where to obtain the report is indicated at the beginning of this note.

NOTE 10. POST.EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required TPAF and PERS,
respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating
25 years of credited service or a disability retirement. P.L.2007, c.103 amended the law to eliminate the
funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of
the pension plans for the funding and palnnent of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State employees
and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2016, there were Il0,5l2 retirees receiving post
retirement medical benefits and the State contributed S1.25 billion on their behalf. The cost of these benefits
is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994 c 62. Funding of post retirement
medical benefits changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 c. 126, which provides employer paid
health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of
education or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $231.2 million toward Chapter 126
benefits for 20,045 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2016.

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Annotated,
Title 52, Article 17.25 et.seq.'Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are found in
Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. The State of New Jersey Division of Pensions
and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for SEHBP. That report may be obtained from the Treasury website at:
http://www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/pdf/financiaV2}l1divisioncombined.pdf
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NOTE 11. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The School District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated
Absences". A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered and that are
not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the School District and its employees, is
accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the School
District's personnel policies. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The School
District's policy permits employees to accumulated unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to
subsequent years. Upon retirement employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the District's agreement with the various employee unions.

In the district wide-Statement of Net Position, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one
year should be reported in two components-the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than
one year.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those funds as

the benef,rts accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2017, a liability existed for compensated absences in the
General Fund of$210,185 and none in the Food Service Fund.

NOTE 12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below,
permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are
not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan
administrators were Lincoln, Prudential, American General Life,ING, AFLAC, and Vanguard.

NOTE 13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property,
liability and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section
of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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NOTE 13. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUEDI

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New Jersey
Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Contribution Method". Under this plan, the District is
required to transmit quarterly amounts to the New Jersey Unemplo¡rrnent Trust Fund to provide for benefits
paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The district does not maintain an
expendable trust fund.

Amount Ending
District Employee Contributed Reserve

Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions to UC System Balance
2016-2017$38,692525,757564,449$-O-
2015-2016 43,646 23,949 67,495 -0-
20t4-2015 31.886 33.026 64.9t2 -0-

NOTE 14. LITIGATION

There was one pending claim involving a terminated employee and three threatened claims stemming from a
vehicular accident submitted against the Board, as of November 7, 2017. However, all four matters have
been forwarded to the District's insurance carrier.

Legal counsel is not aware of any other unasserted claims and assessments against the Board

NOTE 15. INTERFT]ND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2017:

Interfund Interfund
Receivable Payable

General Fund $ 69,755 $ 2.329

Fund

Special Revenue
Enterprise Funds
Trust and Agency Fund

9,736
16,549 16,551

57,688

Total $ 86,304 $ 86,304

NOTE 16. FUND BALANCEAPPROPRIATED

Of the 57,419,298 General Fund balance at June 30,2017, $1,400 is assigned for encumbrances; nothing has
been appropriated and also included as anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2018; $100,000 is
restricted for Maintenance Reserve and $ 1,3 17,898 is unrestricted and unassigned.
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NOTE 17. DEFICIT IN UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION

The governmental activities had a deficit in unrestricted Net Position of 54,562,145, shown on Exhibit A-1,
as of June 30, 2017. The primary cause of the deficit is attributable to the application of GASB 68 as

described in Note 9 and the allocation of compensated absences balances payable to unrestricted Net Position
and the result from a delay in the June payments of state aid until the following fiscal year.

NOTE 18. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

Special Services School Districts are subject to an excess surplus calculation in accordance with N.J.S.A.
184:46-31 as amended. The New Jersey Department of Education will perform this calculation during its
process of tuition rate certification. Therefore, no excess surplus, if applicable, is reflected in the financial
statements.

NOTE 19. MERGE OF THE SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES BOARD OF EDUCATION
AND TIIE SALEM COUNTY VO.TECH BOARD OF EDUCATION

Effective, July 1, 2009, the Salem County Board of Chosen Freeholders adopted a resolution to disband the
Salem County Special Services Board of Education and the Salem County Vo-Tech Board of Education,
instituting a new Board named "The Board of Education for the Vocational School District and the Special

Services School District for the County of Salem".

NOTE 20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

Accounts Receivables at June 30,2017 consisted of fees, tuition and grants are as follows:

Special
Revenue Proprietary
Fund Fund

Receivables:

State

Federal

Intergovernmental

Other

Total

4,173

4,173 S 1.250-468

General
Fund

$ 16,999 $

247,549

$64
5,374

1,245,030

$ 264,548 $



-61-

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 21. TAX ABATEMENT

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an agreement
between a government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to forgo tax revenues
and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic
development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. School districts are not authorized by New
Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement agreements. However, the county or municipality in which the
school district is situated may have entered into tax abatement agreements, and that potential must be

disclosed in these financial statements. If the county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements,
those agreements will not directly affect the school district's local tax revenue because NJSA 54:4-75 and
NJSA 54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and
remitted to the school district.

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise their
minimum tax levy using the required local share provisions at NJSA 184:7F-5(b), the loss of revenue
resulting from the municipality or county having entered into a tax abatement agreement is indeterminate due
to the complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the New Jersey Department of
Education based upon district property value and wealth.

NOTE 22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no other events noted, between the year-end and the date of the audit report, requiring disclosure.

End ofNotes to Financial Statements
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Budgetarv Comnarison Schedule-General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2017

Original
Actual

Final
Transfers Budget Actual

300,000

8,501,422

2,000

300,000
7,468,348

4,358
7 qAA

EXHIBIT C-l
(1)

(Unfavorable)

(1,033,074)

2,35&

3,944

Revenues:
Local Sources:

County Tax Levy

Tuition from LEA's

Interest on Investments

Unrestricted Miscella¡eous Revenues

Total - Local Sources

State Sources:
On-behalf TPAF Pension Contribution
On-behalf TPAF Post-Retirement Medícal Contributions
On-behalf TPAF Long-Term Disability
Reimbursement TPAF Social Securitv

Total - State Sources

TOTALREVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
CTJRRENT EXPENSES:

Special Education:
Behavioral Disabilíties:

Sala¡ies ofTeachers

Other Salaries for Instruction

Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Purchased Technical Services

Other Purchased Services

General Supplies

Textbooks

Other Objects

Total Behavioral Disabilities

Multiple Disabilities:
Salaries of Teachers

Other Salaries for Instnrction

Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Other Purchased Services

General Supplies

Textbooks

Other Objects

Total Multiple Disabilities

.Autism:

Sala¡ies ofTeachers

Other Salaries for Instruction

Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Purchased Technical Services

Other Purchased Services

General Supplies

Textbooks

Other Objects

Total Autísm

Preschool Disabilities - Full Time
Salaries of Teachers

Other Salaries for Instruction

Purchased Professional-Educational Services

Other Purchased Services

General Supplies

Other Objects

Total Preschool Disabilities - Full Time

300,000
8,50t,422

2,000

8,803,422 8,803,422 7,776,650 (1,026,772)

524,546
437,066

2,640
355,t20

524;546
437,066

2,640
355,120

t,3t9,372 t,319,372

8,803,422 8,803,422 9,096,022 292,600

64t,397 50,940
236,210 (4s,s92)

s,200 (2,900)
4,468 (2,290)

10,488

5,200 13,200

4,000 (2,491)
5,000 (s00)

692,337

190,618

2,300
2,178

10,488

18,400

1,509

4,500

692,334
186,577

2,086

4,288

18,2t2

2,403

J

4,04t
214

2,178

6,200
188

1,509

2,097

9n,963

494,722

276,232
2,500

6,500
10,000

3,125

10,367 922,330 905,900 16,430

38,146
(s4,50s)

1,271

(3,2e1)
3,177

(3,12s)
4,500

s32,868
221,727

3,771

3,209
13,t77

4,s00

532,232

221,726

3,770
3,208

10,510

8ó9

636

I

I

I
2,667

3,631

793,079 (13,827) 779,252 11) 71 < 6,937

366,501

207,935

5,000
3s0
800

I 9,500

3,12s

3,500

62,437
6,000

(2,006)
(3s0)

1,229

441
(3,t2s)
2,628

428,938
213,935

2,994

2,029
19,941

6,128

403,478
160,825

, oo?

2,00s
t5,672

4,030

2s460
53,1 10

I

1À

4,269

2,098

606,71t 67,254 673,965 s89,003 84,962

65,885

36,558

5,000

963
8,125

27,795
4,589

(4,622)
(s47)

(s,302)
s00

93,680

41,147

378
4t6

2,823
500

87,870
41,147

408
1,266

54

5,810

1

8
I 5S7

446

I 16,53 I 22,413 138,944 l3l,l22 7,822



EXHIBIT C-l
(2)

Variance
Final to Äctual

Original Budget Final Favorable
Budget Transfers Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

EXPENDITURES: (Continued)

CURRENT EXPENSES: (Continued)

Extended School Year
Sala¡ies ofTeachers

Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction

Other Sala¡ies for Instruction

Other Purchased Services

General Supplies

Total Extended School Year

Cognitive - Severe:

Sala¡ies ofTeachers

Other Salaries for Instruction

Purchased P¡ofessional - Educational Services

Other Purchased Services

General Supplies

Textbooks

Other Objects

Total Cognitive Severe

Total Special Education

Other Instructional Programs - Instruction
Sala¡ies

Purchased Services

Supplies & Materials

Other Objects

Total Other Instruction Programs - Instruction

Total Instruction

Undistributed Dxpenditures:

Attendance and Social lVork Services
Salaries

Total Attendance and Social Work Services

Health Services:
Sala¡ies
Purchased Professional and Technícal Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Eealth Services

Speech, OT, PT & Related Services

Salaries

Purchased Professional Educational Services

Total Speech, OT, PT & Related Services

lmprovement of lnstruction Services/Other Support
Services- Instructional Staff

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assista¡ts

Purchased Professional Rlucational Services

Total Improvement of Instruction

Educational Medía Services: School Library
Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Total Educâtionâl Media Services

$ 366,720 $
8,600

273,600
37,550
14,325

(77,29s) S

(7,900)

(10,737)
(4, I 83)

289,42s $ 289,42s S

700 700
273,600 273,125
26,813 26,813
10,142 10,142

475

700,79s (t00,1 1s) 600,680 600,205 4I>

t86,2t5
17,971

2,500

3,34t
10,000

(ee2)

(2,038)
(40)

(3,12s)
1,875

I 86,215

t7,971
1,508

1,303

9,960

1,875

175,830

¿,t)t
I,508
1,301
? r?<

276

l 0,38s
15,240

2
6,1)<

1,599

223,152 (4,320) 218,832 I 84,88 I 33,951

7 1a) )11 (l 8,228) 3,334,003 3,183426 150,577

464,22t
128,700

I I,550
4,000

I I 1,557
(12,764)

(1,1 36)
(2,r73)

575,778

I I 5,936
10,414

1,827

539,761

1 15,904

9,907
27

36,017

)2
507

I,800

608,471 95,484 703,955 66s,s99 38,3s6

3,960,702 77,256 4,037,958 3,849,025 r 88,933

49,588 49,588 44,169 5,419

49,588 49,588 44,169 5,419

t37,943
800

2,000
r0,000

t4,J60
(800)

5,200
974

ts2,303

7,200
t0,974

133,622

3,020
7,910

18,681

4,1 80
3,064

150,743 19,734 170,477 t44,ss2 25.925

671,759
2,500

6,385
(20)

678,144
2,480

446,579 231,565
2,480

674,259 6,36s 680,624 446,579 234,045

20,000 20,000 l 9,98s t5

20,000 20,000 19,985 l5

3,500 3,s00 3,485 l5

3,s00 l53,500 3,485



For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 20I7
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Original Budget
Budget Transfers

Final
Budget

EXHIBIT C-l
(3)

Variance
Final to Actual

Favorable
(Unfavorable)Actual

EXPENDITURDS: (Continued)

CURRENT EXPENSES: (Continued)
Undistributed Expenditures: (Continued)

Instructional Stâff Training Services:

Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Other Purchased Services

Supplies a¡d Materials

Total Instructional Staff Training Services

Support Services - General Administration:
Salaries

Legal Services

Audit Fees

OtherPurchasedProfessional Services

Communication/Telephone

Misc. Purchased Services

General Supplies

BOE In-House TrainingÀ4eeting Supplies

Miscellaneous Expenditures

BOE Membership Dues and Fees

Total Support Services - General Admin¡strâtion

Support Services - School Administrât¡on:
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals

Salaries of Secreta¡ial and Clerical Assistants

Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Other Purchased Services

Supplies ald Materials

Other Objects

Total Support Services - School Administration

Central Services

Salaries

Purchased Technical Services

Miscellaneous Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Miscellaneous Expenditures

Totâl Central Services

Admin. Info. Technology
Salaries

Purchased Technical Services

Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Total Admin. Info. Technology

Total Central Services & Admin, Info. Technology

Required Maintenance for School Facilities
Salaries

Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Services

General Supplies

Total Required Maintenance for School Facilities

20,000 (s,046) 14,954 11,092

$ s,000 $

14,000

1,000

1,530 $
(6,s76)

6,s30 $

7,424

1.000

4,527 S

6,565
2,003

859

1,000

3,862

91,102
27,000
20,000

20,000
4,500
9,500
4,500

500
4,500

6,000

1 5,1 00
(r0,1 l2)

194
(4,500)
(2,666)

ll5
(44s)

6,239
(700)

106,202
I 6,888

20,000
20,194

6,834
4,615

55

10,739

s,300

s5,368
10,058

1 3,500

20,194

6,716
a 41')

I 0,3 14

5,100

50,834
6,830
6,500

118

143

55

425

200

t87.602 7 ))< t90,827 125,722 65, I 0s

226,746

9l,009
l,000

1t,699
6,000
9,300

16,849

9,043
(1,000)

290
(3,00 l )
(7,491)

14,690

243,595

I 00,052

1 1,989

2,999

1,809

233,545

92,980

I 1,300

2,654
r,809

10,050

7,072

689
J4)

360,444 342,288345,754

258,667

34,000
1,500

4,500

750

2,012

633

70
(100)

258,667

36,012
L.IJJ

4,570
6s0

195,235
9,737
2,r33
4,31r

291

63,432
26,275

259

359

299,417 ) Ál< 302,012 211,707 90,32s

44,660
20,000

1,500

5,000

3,000
(3,333)

778

47,660

t6,667
2,278
6,555

32,304
4,350
2,278

6,554

rs,356
12,317

I

71,160 2,000 73,160 45,486 27,674

370,577 4,Ol) 375,192 257,193 117,999

{5 i??
69,000
I 0,000

1,750
4 1a¿,

3,107

57,282
73,154
13,107

55,852
64,806
12,603

1,430
8,348

s04

l?4 \1') 9,01I 143,543 t33,261 10,282
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetarv Comoarison Schedule-General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2017

Actual

EXHIBIT C-I
(4)

Variance
Final to Actual

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Original
Budget

Budget Final
Transfers Budget

EXPENDITURES: (Continued)

CURRENT EXPENSES: (Continued)

Undistributed Expenditures: (Continued)

Operation And Maintenance Of Plant Services:
Purchased Professional a¡d Technical Services

Cleaning, Repair and Maíntenance Services

Rental - Other than Lease Purchase Agreements

Other Purchased Property Services
Insura¡ce

General Supplies

Energy (Natural Gas)

Energy @lectricity)
Enerry (Oil)

Total Operat¡on of PIant Services

Care and Upkeep of Grounds
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services

Total Operation And Maintenance ofPlant Services

Student Transportation Services

Cont Services-Other Than between Home and School-Vendors

Total Student Transportation Services

Allocâted Benefits:

Social Security Contributions

Other Retirement Contributions - PERS

Unemployment Compensation

Workers' Compensation

Health Benefits

Totâl Allocated Benefits

Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits:
Social Security Contributions

Other Retirement Contributions - PERS

Unernployment Compensation

Workers' Compensation

Health Benefits

Tuition Reimbursements

Other Employee Benefits

Totâl Unâllocated Benefits - Employee Benefits

On-behalf TPAF Non-Contributory Insurance (Non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF Postretirement Contributions (Non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF Long-Term Disability (Non-budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions Not-budgeted)

TOTAL ON-BEHA,LF CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES

TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE

CAPITALOUTLAY
Equipment
Special Education Instruction:

Multiple Disabilities

Autism

Cognitive - Severe

Total Equipment

391,744 (45,s03) 346,241

7,000
167,140
58,040

200
34,68s
9,000

16,500

73,t79
26,000

456 $

(12,394)
(5,408)

(1 s2)

(3,848)
( r,s84)

( l 9,603)
(2,970)

7 45at

154,746

52,632

48
34,68s

s 1s?

14,916
53,s76
23,030

1 )1<

t42,577
52,632

34,68s

8,328

50,971

14,t29

181

t2,t69

48

s l<')

6,s88
2,605

8,901

310,597 35,644

9,000 12,13s

53s,276 (24,357)

18,050 16,91 8

21.13s 21.134

510,919 464,992

34,968 32,880 2,088

18,050 16,918 34,968 32,880 2,088

35,512
6,797
3,249
s,802

r68,064

(1 s,e66)
(1,200)

(5,802)
(147,247)

19,546
< <o7

3,249

20,817 20.637

19,546

5,597
7 )4q

r80

219,424 (t70,21s)

48,278

21,942

9,5t9
(45, r 07)
( r s,4s6)

( 1,s30)

49,209 20,637 28,572

191,848

106,673

to,/)l
122,674

t,725,001

35,000

10,000

240,126
106,673

38,ó93

132,193
t,679,894

19,544
8,470

240,125
t06,673
38,692

131,057

1,621,745

18,826
6 )AA

I

I

1,136

58,149

718
) ))Á

2,207,947 l7,646 2,225,593 z,to5,5o¿ 62,231

524,546
437,066

2,640
355,120

t,319,372

(s24,s46)
(437,066)

(2,640)
(3s5, l 20)

(1,319,372)

2,207,947 17,646 2,225,s93 3,482,734 (1,2s7,141)

4,802,720 (r16,42s) 4,686,295 s,396,308 (710,013)

8,763,422 (39,169) 8,724,253 9,245,333

4,65820,000

15,000

5,000

(1s,342)
(rs,000)
(s,000)

4,658

40,000 (3s,342) 4,658 4,658

(s21,080)
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SALEM COT]NTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetarv Comparison Schedule-General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2017

Original Budget
Budget Transfers

Final
Budget

EXHIBIT C-l
(s)

Variance
Final to Actual

Favorable
(Unfavorable)Actual

EXPENDITURES: (Continued)

CURRENT EXPENSES: (Continued)

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services:
Construction Services

Land and Improvements $
Lease Purchase Agreement - Principal

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services

Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases (Non-budget)

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

75,042 75,042 38,478

$ s,042 s
70,000

s,042 $

70,000
$ s,042

71 <))38,4't8

36"564

40,000 39,700 79,700 43,136 36,564

8,803,422 531 8,803,953 9,288,469 (484,s l6)

(531) (531)

Excess (Deficiency) ofRevenues ând Other
Over(Under) Expenditu res

Other Financing Sources (uses):

Operating Transfers In(Out):
Extended School Ye¿r Closeout

Prior Year Adjustment - Accounts Receivable

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
fi nancing sources over(under) expenditures

and other financing uses

Fund Balances, July I

Fund Balances, June 30

RECAPITULATION

Restricted Fund Balance:

Maintenance Reserve

Assigned to:
Year-End Encumbrances

Unassigned Fund Balance

Fund Balance per Governmental Funds (GAAP)

(192,447)

390,602
82,146

( 191,916)

390,602
82,146

(s3l)

472,748 472,748

280.832

1,138,997

(s31) 280,301

1,138,997 1,138,997

1,138,997 $ (s3 1) $ t,138,466 S 1,419,298 280,832

100,000

1,400

1,3 17,898

$ 1,419,298
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SPECIAL REVENTIE FT]NI)
AS OF JUNE 30. 2017

Original Budget

Budget Transfers

$ $ 1t,500

Final

Budget

$ t 1,500 $

EXHIBIT C-2

Variance

Actual Final to Actual

t2,165 $ 665

REVENUES:
Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction

General Supplies

Purchased Professional ED. Services

Total Instruction

Support Services

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services:

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Total Outflows

Excess (Deficiency) ofRevenues Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources (Uses)

I 1,500 I 1,500 12,165 665

l1,500
t.J I I

I 1,500
6,553

5,612
824

5.888

I 1,500 18,877 12,165 6,772

I 1,500 I,J I I 18,877 12,765 6,712

l r,500 7,377 18,877 t2,165 6,712



NOTES TO THE REOUIRED SUPPLBMENTARY
INFORMATION PART II
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
REOUIRED STJPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGET -TO.GAAP RECONCILIATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2OT7

General

Fund

EXHIBIT C-3

Special

Revenue

Fund

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflorvs and Outflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sou rces/infl ows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"
from the budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that

encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized.

Total revenues as reported on the Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but

not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for Jinancial reporting purposes.

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement ofRevenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds

lc-l] $ 9,096,022 lc-21 $ 12,16s

fB-21 $ 9,096,022 [B-2] $ 12,165

lc-u s 9,288,469 [C-2ì $ 12,165

tB-21 $ 9,288,469 [B-2] $ r2,t6s



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION PART III
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SCHEDULE L-T

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SBRVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULES OF REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDTJLB OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF TIIE NET PENSION LIABILITY

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2016 20t5 2014 20t3

District's Proportion of the Net Pension

Liability(Asset) 0.035685% 0.031218% 0.024927% 0.022275%

District's Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability (Asset)

District's Covered-Employee Payroll

Dishict's Proportionate Sha¡e of the Net

Pension Liability (Asset) as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll

Plan FiduciaryNet Position as a

Percentage ofthe Total Pension Liability

Note: The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the
calendar year-end that occur¡ed within the flrscal year.

$ 10,568,925 $ 7,007,966 $ 4,666,990 S 4,257,130

8 2,541,161 S 2,470,397 S 2,207,070 $ 1,960,265

4ls.9t% 283.67% 21r.46% 217.17%

40.14% 47.93% 52.08% 48.720/o



-67 _

SCHEDULE L-2

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2016 2015 2014 2013

Contractually Required Contribution $ 322,451 $ 268,393 S 205,493 $ 167,835

Contributions in Relation to the

Contractually Required Contribution (322,451) (268,393) (205,493) (167,835)

ContributionDeficiency(Excess) S $ $ S
::::

District's covered-Employee Payroll $ 2,541,161 $ 2,470,397 S 2,207,070 S 1,960,265

Contributions as a Percentage of
covered-Employee Payroll 12.69% 10.86% 9.31% 8.56%
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SCHEDULE L-3

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULES OF REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTTONATE STIARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

TEACHERIS PENSION PLAN

2016 20ts 2014 2013

Dishict's Proportion of the Net Pension

Liability(Asset) 0.042760% 0.049653% 0.052290% 0.051708%

State's proportionate sha¡e ofthe net pension

liability(asset)associatedwiththeDistrictS33,637,659S3l,383,0l6S27,947,304S26,132,864

District's Covered-Employee Payroll 8 3,479,591 $ 4,980,916 $ 4,543,261 S 3,975,269

Districfs Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability (Asset) as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll

Plan FiduciaryNet Position as a

Percentage ofthe Total Pension Liability

Note: The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the
calendar year-end that occurred within the fiscal year.

966.71% 630.07% 615.140/o 657.39%

22.33% 28.7t% 33.64% 33.76%
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SCITEDULE L-4

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

TEACHERS' PENSION PLAN

The School District was not required to make any contributions towards TPAF.

Note: This schedule is required by GASB 68 to show information for a 10 year

period. However, information is only currently available for four years.

Additional years will be presented as they become available.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO R.EQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INF'ORMATION PART III

PENSION SCHEDULES
F'OR THE F'ISCAL YEAR ENDED JI.INE 30,2017

Teøchers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAFI

Changes of benefit terms. The vesting and beneflrt provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 184:66. TPAF
provides retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service,
except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions
of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of
service credit, become vested for ZYo of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case
of death before retirement. members' beneficiaries ¿re entitled to full interest credited to the
members' accounts.

Change of assumptions. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Health Annuitant Mortality
Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements based
on Scale AA. Pre-retirement mortality improvements for active members are projected using
Scale AA from the base year 2000 until the valuation date plus 15 years to account for future
mortalify improvement. Post-retirement mortality improvements for non-disabled annuitants are
projected using Scale AA from the base year of 2000 for males and 2003 for females until the
valuation date plus 7 yearc to account for future mortality improvement.

Public Emplovees' Retirement System (PERS)

Changes of benefit terms. The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15,A.. PERS
provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service,
except for medical benehts, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions
ofPERS.

Change of assumptions. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healtþ Male and
Female Mortality Tables (setback I year for females) with adjustments for mortality
improvements from the base year of 2012 Based on Projection Scale AA.



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or major capitalprojects) that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.
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EXHIBIT E-l

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMBINING SCHEDULES OF'REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2017

NJSIG Know
Safefy to Grow Totals

REVENUES:
Federal sources

State sources

Other sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:

Purchased Professional ED. Services

General Supplies

Total Instruction

Support Services - General Administration:

Supplies and Materials

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services:

Instructional Equipment

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Grant Grant 2017 2016

$$$$1,29r

6,553 5,612 12,765 13,499

6,:553 5,612 12,165 14,779

6,553

5,612 5,612 5,245

6,553 9,534

6,553 5,612 72,165 14,779

$ 6,553 $ 5,6t2 $ 12,165 $ t4,779



PROPRIETARY FUND DETAIL STATBMENTS

Proprietary Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of
the district's board is that the costs of providing goods or services be financed
through user charges.

Food Services Fund - This fund provides for the operation of food services in
all schools within the school district.

Alternative High School Enterprise Fund - This fund provides for the peration
of the District's Alternative High School.

Transportation Enterprise Fund - This fund provides for transportation
services provided to other local educational associations.

Related Services Enterprise Fund - This fund provides for student support
services which are provided to other local educational
associations.



ASSETS:

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:
State

Federal
Intergovernmental
Other
lnterfund Receivable

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Equipment
Less: Depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
lnterfund Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Ch¡ld Related
Study Services
Team Fund

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTR]CT
PROPRIETARY ENTERPRJSE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30. 2017 AND 2016

249,135 $

Nonpublic Early Regional Food
One on Interlocal Summer Intervention Day Seruice

One Aides Fund Programs program School Fund

147,989 187,093

7,502

106,514 $

397,124

653,218 $

301,109

9,738
(9,738)

Net Position:

Unrestricted 396-765
Invested in Fixed Assets

Restricted for Other Purposes

351,743 24,016

9,047

397,124

1,014,008

Total Net Position S 396,765 S 301,109 $ 1,014,008

301,109

359

24,016

116,496 $

359

1,014,008

33,209
(33,209)

r,199,060 $

EXIIIBTT G-l

24,016

301,109

116,496

534,1 89

2017 2016

23,763

64
\ ?1A

1,014,009

1,733,249

9,047

Totals

9,047

$ 2,348,186 S

64

5,374
1,245,030

16,549

86,035 17,373
(22,39s) (17,373)

63,640

n6,496

14,969

29,201

$ 14,969 $

l,7g6,ggg

t,tttr*

2,249,504

198

16,7s4
749,183

8,947

116,496

2,281

29,20'l

146,355
(82,7ls)

2,281

3,024,596

116,496

1,730,968

63,640

63,640

3,678,843

146,355
(72,s33)

73,822

s r,794,608 S 21,697 $

--

7,504

7,504

21,697

2,640
r6,55 I

3,099,409

19,191

3,596,012

63.640

463
t4,345

14,808

3,659,652 S

2,948,356

73,822
61,422

3,083,600



OPERATING REVENUES:
Local Sources:

Daily sales - reimbursable programs:
School lunch and breakfast program

Total daily sales - reimbursable programs

N.J. Dept of Human Services - Fees
Tuition
Non-Public School Program
Salem Campus
Services provided other LEAs

Total Operatihg Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Professional and Technical Sewices
Purchased Professional /Educ services
Purchased Professional Services
Purchased Property Services
Rental of Buildings
Other Purchased Services
Communications Telephone
Custodial Services:
Cleaning /Repair /Maintenance

Supplies and materials
General Supplies
Travel
Transportation

Cost ofsales
Other objects
Required Maintenance:
Cleaning /Repair /Maintenance

Insurance

Equipment
Depreciation
Utilities

Total Operating Expenses
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SALEM COT]NTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY ENTERPRISE FI,JIIDS

COMPARATWE STATEMENT OF REVE¡IUES. EXPENSES. AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

AS OF JfrNE 30. 2017 AND 2016

Child Related
Study Services
Team Fund

$

One on
One Aides

721,909

721,909

Nonpublic Earty
Interlocal Summer Intervention

592,780

177,876

149

10,709
25,000

2,750

Fund

803,199

803,1 99

Programs Program School Fund Z0l7 2016

625,491

169,958

6,4t4
1,943

50,000

2,750

2,022,257

2,022,257

967,296

730,464

24,016

2,999
1,497

722

Regional
Day

24,016

12,924

12,173
4,532

920

819,610

Food

Service
Fund

EXHIBIT G.2
(1)

814,482 $

$ 6,9s9 $

8r9,610

3,183,234

25,072

170,815
55 nlq

489,9t9

10,084

3,368

1.778

Totals

874,t81 $

Á Q{O

3,208,306

720
91

1,664,123
s05,308

I,178
1,767

11,564
26,s34

24,725

76,867
12,720
22,t59

9,166

?<ol?
1 0,000

6,959 $

6,9s9

81 9,610
3,183,234

3,s96,453

1,697,760 $ 13,834

6,9s9

9,701

9,701

812,28s
2,810,095

3,8 I 4,655

7,606,2s6

92,4s9

4,033,429

1,638,62s

93,637

498,249

24,216
l I 1,618

30,324
3,368

16,867

12,720
44,897

6,120

.37,330

10,808

25,913
10,000

1 0,1 82
\1 11)

$ 6J2s,43s

7,446,736

4,446,791

1,746,619

11,681

563,258

2r,288
9,000

21,604
) \)7

3,72s
58,714
8,239

36,474

91,649
10,t37

126,742
3,747

4,108

7,637

58,558

$ 7,232,498730,983 $ 2,496,668 $

s,068

1 0,1 82
\7 1't')

01 <)1



Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues :

Local Sources - Board Subsidy
State Sources:

State School Lunch Program
Federal Sources:

School Breakfast Program
Food Distribution Program
National School Lunch Program

Total Non-Operating Revenues

Transfer to General Fund

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

Net Position - July 1

Net Position - June 30

1À

SALEM COTJNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY ENTERPRISE FTj¡{DS

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES. AND
CIIANGES IN FUÀID NET POSITION

AS OF JTJNE 30.2017 AND 2016

Child Related Nonpublic
Study Services One on Interlocâl
Team f,'und One Aides Fund

$ (92,s73) $ (70,982) î 324,497 $ 10,182 $

(92,s73)

489,338

Early
Summer Intervention
Programs Progrâm

$ 396,76s $ 301,109 $

(70,982)

372,091

Regional Food
Day Service

School Fund

$ 711,638 $ (90,568) $

324,497

ó89,5 I I

88,627

1,014,008 $

10,182 (390,602)

4,787 390,602

EXHIBIT G-2
(2)

14,969 $

(390,602)

2017 2016

880,821 $ 214,238

88,627

27,869

Totals

1,024

28,933

55,876

t 16,496 $

71t,638

1,082,970

1,024

28,933

55,876

1,794,608 $

85,833

1,1 1s

?? 5?O

9,044
57,954

101,6s2

(4,735) s76,052

26,432 3,083,600

85,833

(390,602)

21,697 $ 3,6s9,652 $ 3,083,600

(264,968)

sft ott

3,032,678



Cæh Flows from Opmting Activities:
Ræeipts from Customers
Pa)ments to Employees
Payments for Employee Benefrts
Payments to Supplias

Net Cash Provided by (Jsed for) Operating Activities

Cash from (Used for) Operating Activities-
T¡msfers to the General Fmd

Total Cæh Provided by (Used for) Operating Acrivities

Cæh Flows from Noncapital Finmcing Activities
State Sources

Federal Souces

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF'CASH FLOWS
as oF .IIlNIr.30- tßt? 

^Nn 
rnlÁ

Child Relat€d
Study Senices One on
Team Fund OneAides

Net Cæh Provided by (Used for) Noncapital Finæcing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital md Related Finmcing Activities
Purchases of Capital Assets

Net Cash Provided by (Used For) Capital md Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

656,606 S

(592,780)
(177,876)

(43,467)

Net Cash Provided by (Jsed for) Investing Activities

Net Increæe (Dæreæe) in Cash md Cæh Equivalents (tttJ I Ð

Balmces - Begiming of Yeu 406,652

Balmæs - End of Yem S 249,135

(1s7,5t7)

712,428 g

(62s,491)
(169,958)

(78,732)

(157,s l7)

(16 1,753)

Nonpublic Enrly Rcgional
Int€rlocal Summer InteNention Day

Fund Programs Program School

1,849,423 S

(967,296)
(730,464\

Opøating income (loss)

Adjustnents to reconcile operating income (loss)
to cash used by operating activities:

Depreci ation

Chmge in æsets md liabilities:
(lncrease)/decreæe in Accouts Receivable
(lncreæe)/decreæe in Interfud Receivable
Increase(decrease) in Accouts Payable
Increase/(decrease) in Interfund Payable

Totâl Adjusünents

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Opuaring Activities

(16 r,753)

r5 1,663

(3,877)

(el0)

I 5 1,663

(4;t87)

8,947 S

(4,787) (381,65s)

819,610 $
(170,8 l5)
(s5,019)

(s0s,149)

8,947

(390,602)

(16r,7s3) rst,663 (4,787) (381,6s5)

268,267 501,55s 4,787 38t,6ss

$ l06,sl4 $ 653,218 S S

3,048,834 S 18,473 S

(1,664,123)
(505,308)
(31s,237) (104,368)

88,62'.t

(e2,s73) S

Food
Senice Totals
Fund 2017 2016

EXHIBIT G.3

(70,982) S 324,497

88,62'l

564,166

(6s,303)

3s9

$ (r57,sl?) s (161,753) s lsl,663

564,t66

(64,e44)

7,tr4,321 $ 7,390,586
(4,024,382) (4,446,79t'
(r,638,625) (1,746,619)
(r,047,863) (1,0s6,010)

(8s,895)

(83,269) (t63,787)
(7,s02) (9,047)

(85,895)

403,451

(90,77t) (172,834)

(390,602)

12,849

r0,182 $

t,024
84,809

88,627 564,166

27,869 634,894

s___tþ11 $_fj2{60 s

$ 88,627 $ 711,638 S

t0,182

(159,472)

l,8l 8

85,833

l4l,l66

(24,016)

9,041

(264,e68)

t,024
84,809

(l 23,802)

$ (4,787) $ 8,947 $ 88,627

(t4,969\

85.833

8,947

I,l 15

100,537

(62) 98,682 (103,609)

23,825 2,249,504 2,353,113

_ 3! e_s __]ff ! y_$ 
__:,24e!x 4_

(90,s68)S 880,821 $ 214,238

I 0 1,652

8,947

(81,4s9)

(81,45e)

$ 564,166 $ (85,895) $ 403,451 S l4l,t66

(14't,472)

I 1,5 l4

(6,841)

I0,182

(47s,386)
(r6,549)

2,177
2,206

7,63"t

(48,903)

(3 1,806)



FIDUCIARY FUNDS DETAIL STATEMENTS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds received by the school district for
a specific purpose.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the school district as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other govemments anlor other funds.

Student Activity Fund - This agency fund is used to account for student funds
held at the schools.

Payroll Fund - This agency fund is used to account for the payroll transactions
of the school district.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JUNE 30.2017
(wrTH COMPARATTVE TOTALS FORJUNE 30,2016)

Aoencw

Expendable
Trust Student
Funds Activity Payroll

Total
2017

EXHIBIT H-l

Total
2016

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interfund Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Interfund Payable

Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION:

Held in Trust for Unemployment
Claims and Other Purposes

1,097 $ 20,995 $ 70,560 $ 92,552 S 15,674
) )1<

1,097 $ 20,895 $ 70,560 $ 92,552 S 17,949

20,895

12,872 $
57,688

12,872

57,688

20,895

2,943

13,910

20,895 70,560 91,455 16,853

$ 1,097 $ 1,096
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
MEMORIAL EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN F'IDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2017 AND 2016

20t7 2016

EXHIBIT H-2

$ r$ z

t2
r,096 1,094

$ 1,097 $ 1,096

OPERATING REVENUES:

Local Sources

Interest on Investments

OPERATING EXPENSES

Withdrawals

Operating Income (Loss)

Net Position - July 1,2016

Net Position - June 30,2017
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Job Coach
T- Shirts
Walk
Box Tops
Flex
Prom
Holiday/Car Show

Due Students

Activity

Balance
July I
20t6

947
449

6,959
978

3,505

495

577

Cash
Receipts

Cash
Disbursements

9,369
282

T,IT2
4,949

333

13,910 $

EXHIBIT H.3

4TT $

2,265
133

r,176
4,576

498

16,044 $

Accounts
Payable

Balance
June 30

2017

9,059 $

536
449

14,063
r,127
3,441

867

412

$ 20,895
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SALEM COTINTY SPECIAL SERVICES DISTRICT
PAYROLL AGENCY FUND

SCHEDTJLE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBIJRSEMENTS
F'OR THE F'ISCAL YEAR ENDED JIINE 30. 2017

Balance
July 1,2016 Additions Deletions

EXHIBIT H.4

Balance
June 30,2017

70,560

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Interfund Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Payroll Deductions, Withholdings
and Net Pay

Interfund Payable

Total Liabilities

2,943 $ 10,173,839 $ 10,106,222 $

668 $

2,275
10,173,839 $ 10,r03,947

) )7\

70,560

2,943 $ 10,1 16,151

57,688

1.0,706,222 $ 12,872

57,688

2,943 $ 10,173,839 $ 10,706,222 $ 70,560



LONG.TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term Schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances
of the general long-term
liabilities of the school district. This includes serial bonds outstanding and
obligations under capital leases.



Series

201 6 Various Technology

and Vehicles

Date

of

Lease

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES DISTRICT
Schedule of Obligations Under Capital Leases

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2017

Term

of
Lease

-80-

Amount of
Original

lssue

Principal

(a) Future lnterest Payments Removed from Carrying Value of Leases.

lnterest Amount

Rate Outstanding

Payable June 30,2016

$ 67,016

Paid from RDS

Paid from General Fund

$ 6?,016_

(a)

lssued

Exhibit l-2

Retired Amount
Current Outstanding

Year June 30, 2017

$ 67,016

$ 67,016

28,538
38,479

$ 67,016

(a)



STATISTICAL SECTION



Govemmental Activities

Investe<i in Capital Assets, Net ofRelated Debt
Restricted

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Govemmental Activities Net Position

Business-Type Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net ofRelated Debt
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Business-Type Activities Net Position

Dishict-Wide

lnvested in Capital Assets, Net ofRelated Debt
Restricted

Unresrricted (Deficit)

Total District-Wide Net Position
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EXIIIBIT J-l

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUD]TED)

(Accr ua I B as is of Account i ng)

$ 1,037,489 $ 6,580,711 $ 6,756,746 $

100,000 s37,s6s 280,291
359,640 384,306 352,606

g 1,497,129 S 7,s02,582

Source: CAFR Schedule A-1

5,587 $

6,161

2,00s,361

$ 2,017,109 S 2,176,258 $ 1,699,454 $ 1,103,964 $ 609,072 $:

8 7,389,643 $ 6,295,742

38,018 $
10,088

2,128,tsz

5,748,409

264,991

282,342

1,043,076 $

106,161

2.365.001

t ,¡to"rrrs rrut*¡*s ,prrp" g ,,tr1*t u,ur,ru $ uJru-Jors rl",* g ,2*,0*: :

29,134 $ 13,150 $

4,554 1,050

1,665,766 1,089,764

6,618,729 $

547,653

2,512,458

$ s,688,910 $ 5,409,991 $

127,734 127,879

201,606 190,537

$ 6,018,250 S s,728,407

6,785,880 $

284,845

2,018,372

5,761,559 $
266,04t

1,372,106

4,725 I

604,347

5,706,980

100,210

691,176

$ 6,498,366 ï 2,260,791 $

5,693,635 $

127,734

805,953

$ 5,472,718 $

r00,000

(3,311,927)

1,027.902

1,027,902

5,409,991 $

t27,879

1,218,439

s 1,767,867 $ 3,032,678 $ 3,083,600 $ 3,659.652

I,767,867

5,305,690

100,000

(3,72t,097)

$ s 73,822 S

61,422 61,422

2,971,256 2,948,356

5,706,980 $

100,2 l0
2,459,043

s 5,104,583

100,000

(4,s62,14s)

1.684.593 $ 642,438

63,640

3,596,012

5,472,718

161,422

(340,671)

g 5,379,s12 g 5,168,223

161,422 100,000

(772,741) (966,133)

s 4,768,193 $ 4,302,090
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SÂLEM COUNTY SPECI.ÀL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT

(LNAUDITED)
(Accmql Bqsi s of ¿ccounli nt)

EXHIBIT J-2

$$$$
942,t83 r,360,947 1,731,368

94,409 224,344 27't,7tt
2t7,877 t'14,79t 99,999
143,233 2to,t38 2t3,903
63,481 10l,416 u3,430

246,768 43t,645 613,757
2t,520 29,615 28,91t

933,288 1,104,636 t,397,518

4Or485 I 16,025 l34,la2

2012

{(
2,135,308 2,22t,475

249,218 266,142
t65,842 213,976
237,OtL 235,496
t66,174 196,259
406,797 422,323
23,48't 63,879

1,537,040 1,940,825

t62.619 t96.756

2014

$s
1,958,322 2,530,644

Á?t 156 a1a 596

136,533 234,695
387,163 32t,197
258,205 382,090
450,729 518,957
44,4',14 62,599

2,274,698 2,6't2,058

196,756 280,675

2017

$$
2,966,578 3,422,070 3,861,190

'131,793 670,143 669,862
295,870 t94,252 125,722

52'1,547 335,349 342,288
326,007 353,085 257,t93
630,6'13 445,334 464,383
48,1t2 41,301 38,597

4,400,924 4,969,776 6,593,930

269,262 274,153 272,78t

2,703,244 3,753,557 4,610,779 5,083,496 5,757,t31 6,328,736 7,'176,501 t0,t96,'t66 to,705,463 t2,625,946

Expenses
Covemment¿l activities

Inst¡uction

Regulil
Special Education

Support Seruices

Student md Instruction Related Seryrces

General Administ¡ative Seruices

School Administrative Seryices

Centml Services and lnfo. Technology
Plant Operations md Maintenancc
Pupil Trusportation
Employee Benefits

Interest on lÆng-Tem Debt

Unallocated Depreciation and Amoliation

Total Govemmental Activities Expenses

Business-Type Activities
Food Service
Other Enterprise

Total Business-Type Activities Expense

Total District Expenses

Program Revenues

Govemmental Activities
Operating Grants and Contributions

Total Govemmental Activities Program Revenues

Business-Tlpe Activities
Charges for Seruices

Food Service

Other Enterprise

Operating Græts and Cont¡ibutions

Total Business-T]?e Activities Progm Revenues

Total District Program Revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenue

Govemmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

Total District-Wide Net Expense

47,649 60,405 73,682 73,800

6,t49,082 6,A96,272 7,198,668 6,420,093
tt2,827 7t,996 91,',149 97,527

5,953,561 6,030,991 7,140,749 6,627,908

?sÁr?

5,098,138
84,634

't,t't2,48t

5,t33,751 6,t96,73t 6,956,6'17 7,272,350 6,493,893 7,257,115 6,066,388 6,102,98'l 7,232,498 6,725,435

$ 7,836,995 $ 9,950,288 $ 11,567,456 $ 12,355,846 $ t2,251,O24

9t6,594

49t,156 $ 569,47t $ 611,956 $ 693,365 $ 916,594 $ 1,092,617 $ 948,873 $

t tr¡rr¡rt s 13,842,889 S 13,842,889 $_"¿rt¿l_$:r{:!IL

2,'113,691 $ 3,334,393

2,7t3,691 3,334,393491,t56 569,471 611,956 693,365

805,777 $

1,092,61'Ì 948,873 805,777

3,036 3,958 7,2t4 6,903 't,843

5,871,287 6,370,164 6,5',1'1,t59 6,805,153 5,912,621
23,077 30,187 42,865 56,59'1 61,030

5,897,400 6,404,309 6,627,238 6,868,653

5,416 6,332 6,143 9,701 6,959
7,606,699 6,'t t5,440 7 ,48t,604 'ì 

,43'1 ,O35 7 ,599,297
59,374 55,709 72,68r t01,652 85,833

5,98t,494 7,671,489 6,777,481 7,560,428 7,548,388 7,692,089

$ 6,388,556 $ 6,973,780 S 7,239,194

$ (2,212,088) $ (3,184086) $ (3,998,823) $
763,649 207,s78 (329,439)

$ 7,562,018 $ 6,898,088 $ 8,79,106 $ 7,726,354 g 8,366,205 $ 10,262,O'.t9 $ 1t,026,482

(4,390,131) $ (4,840,537) $ (s,236,1t9) $
(403,6e7) (st2,399) 4t4,374

(6,827,628) $ (9,390,989) $ (7,99t,772) $ (9,29r,553)

71 1,093 1,457,441 315,890 966,654

$ (1,448,439) $ (2,976,508) S (4,328,262) S (4,793,828) $ (s,3s2,936) S (4,821,745\ S

General Reverus ånd Other Chang6 in Net Position

Govemmental Activities
PropertyTdsleviedforGenemlPurposæ,Net $ 315,242 $ 315,242 S 305,000 $ 305,000 $ 305.000 $
Unresl¡icted Grants ild Contributions

_gl'6{2$ ('1,933,s48) $ (7,675,882) $ (8,324,899)

Tuition Received

Inveshnent Emings
Shaed Services Revenue

Miscellaneous lncome
Fixed Assets Adjustment

Transfers

Total Govemmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

Prior Yeã Revenue Adjusbnent

Trasfer

Total Business-Type Activities

Total District-Wide

Change in Net Posiaior

Govemmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

Total District-Wide

Source: CAFR Schedule A-2

1,251 6,005,507
(13,468) (9,st9)

2,40t,105 9,t89,539

2,088,533 2,853,686 3,421,523 3,668,047 4,240,1t7
7,234 t6,208 7,004 3,860 2,7M

8,415

275,000 $ 241,875 g 353,000

4,531,572 6,884,244 7,379,312

1,5t3 2,098 3,531

t27,84',1

14,800 30,475 1,506,866
467,767

(4,4s6) (28,872)

453,000 $ 300,000

6,673,808 '.|,468,348

4,132 4,358

19,666 86,090t4,856

137,501

3,885,884

t7,915
(879,352)

t80,760

25,O52

(e,868) 390,602

3,296,230 4,563,045 4,946,276 7,597,587 9,242,709 '7,4'15,574 8,249,398

264,968

(77,862) (s7,948) (9,864)

13,468 9,519 (137,501)
(l 1,033)

(r 80,760)
7,639
9,868 (t92,630) (192,630) (390,602)

(64,3e4) (48,429) (t47,365) (191,793) t'7,50'ì 4,456 28,872 (192,630) (192,630) (390,602)

s 2,336,711 $ 9,l4l,ll0 $ 3,738,5t9 $ 3,104,431 $ 4,580,552 $ 4,950,732 $ 7,626,459 g 9,050,079 S 7,222,944 $ 7,858,796

$ 189,017 $ 6,005,453 $
699,255 t59,149

(112,939) $ (1,093,901) $ (27'7,492) $ (289,843) $
(476,804) (59s,490) (494,892) 418,830

'169,9s9 $ (148,280)$ (576,198)$ (1,042,155)

739,965 1,264,811 123,260 576,052

(466,103)(772,384) $888,272 $ 6,t64,602 S (589,743) $ (1,689,391) $ 128,987 S r,s09,924 $ I,l16,53l $ (452,938)$



General Fund

Reshicted

Maintenance Reserve

Assigned:

Year-end Encumbrances

Subsequent Year's Expenditures

Unrestricted - Unassignec

Total General Fund

All Other Govemmental Funds
Restricted

Unrestricted, Reported in :

Special Revenue Fund
Capital Projects Fund

Total All Other Governmental Funds
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

(Modi/ìed Acuual Basis of Accountinþ

2008

222,729 S

2009

210,626 S

$ 506,315

$

283,586 322,185

2010 20tt

l57,8ll $ 100,000 s

Source: CAFR Schedule B-l

$ 532,811 S 496,876 S 456,967 S 410,441 S 290,682 $ 886,749: :

$ t14,762 $ 114,762 S

437,565 65,529 50,229

339,065

20lz

s 437,565

100,000 $ $ $
100,000 100,000

t45 2t0

310,441 190,537 786,539356,967

2013 2014

$ 180,291 $ 164,991

EXHIBIT J-3

2015 2016 2017

$$
100,000 100,000 100,000

6,232 531 1,400

1,017,753 1,038,466 l,3l7,8gg

$

27,734 27,734

s 27,734 $ 27,734

$ 1,123,985 $ 1,138,997 S 1,419,298:

qe
::

qc



Revenues

County Tax Levy
Tuition Charges

Interest Eamings
Shared Services Revenue

Miscellaneous

Other Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Instruction

Regular

Special Education Instruction
Support Services

Student and Instruction Related Services

Gene¡al Administrative Services

School Administrative Services

Central Services

Administrative Information Tech, Serv

Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Unallocated Employee Benefits

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Bond & Capital Lease Proceeds

Cancellation of Prior Year Receivables
Transfers

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Debt Service as a Percentage of
Noncapital Expenditures

Source: CAFR Schedule B-2

.84 -

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCEOOL DISTRICT
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

2008

303,117
2,088,s33

7,234

2,313

491,156

2009

$ ?lst¿,
2,853,686

16,208

8,41s

524,485

44,986

2010

$ 30s,000 $

3,421,523

7,004

19,380

594,233

13,199

2,892,3s3

20tt

305,000 $
3,668,047

3,860

21,845

942,183

94,409

217,877

143,233

61,493

1,988

246768

21,520

990,976

25,194

3,763,022

2012

30s,000 $
4,240,117

2,'t44

25,072

872,592

43.982

1,360,947

224,344

174,791

210,138

96,999
4,417

43164s

29,615

1,102,806

5,653,740

4,360,339

673,773

1s,662

2013

1,731,368

oo ooo

213,903

100,148

13,282

613757

28,911

1,401,753

310,217

2,74s,641

4,688,1 87

27s,000 $ 241,87s
4,s31,s72 6,884,244

r,s13 2,098
127,847

19,451 32,431

1,087,966 906,807

40,1 10

t46,712 (5,s26,420)

6,000,000
(4,20e)

(13,468) (9,s19)

2014

2,1 3s,308

249,218

165,842

237,011

120,192

45,982

406,797

23,487

1,506,68s

33.634

9,289,442

s,489,507

2015

$ 3s3,000 $
7,379,312

3,s31

6,154

1,041,058

30,048

$ 129,03s s 464,061 $ (293,209) $ (5s,209)

(17,677)

EXHIBIT J-4

2,221,475

266,142

213,976
t1a aqÁ

1s9,464

36,795

a¿¿,J¿J

63,879

1,906,615

137,257

6,043,349

4,791,049

2016

(430,710) (23s,969)

5,990,481

1,9s8,322

621,8s6

t36,s33
387,163

207,230

s0,975

4s0,729

44,474

2,301,370

8,107,565

0.0% 0.0%

4,924,rs6

4s3,000 $ 300,000
6,673,808 7,468,348

4,132 4,358

33,t54 t6,109

1,12s,049 1,319,372

1,291

2017

137,501 180,760

2,530,644

773,s86
234,695

321,197

301,466

78,624
s18,957
Át 500

2,658,858

27,734

8,813,103

137,501

5,663,422

(173,9ts) (11s,303) s97,20s 237,236

2,966,578

731,793

295,870

527,547
)6\ )\A

60,7s3

630,673

48,112
3,014,287

3s,000

8,290,434 9,108,187

I 80.760

6,1s8,6s2

0.0o/o 0.0%

3,442,070 3,861,190

670,143 669,862
1qâ.)\', 1)\'n)
333,349 342,288
256,149 211,707
96,936 45,486

444,72s 464,992
41,301 32,880

) o1) 1dt't 1 {ô? 171

234,953 43,136

(9,868) (4,4s6) (28,872)

$ (183,783) S (119,7se) $

0.0o/o 0.0%

7,510,360

(e,868)

8,s?5,867

(4,4s6) (28,872)

8,686,218 9,300,634

568,333

(377,784) (192,447)

127,828

82,t46
264,968 390,602

g__ 237236_$

0-0o/o0.0o/o

392.796

1s,012 $ 280.301

472,748



Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30,

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012
20tt
2010

2009

2008
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

fnterest on

Investments

$ 4,358 $

4,132
3,531

2,099
1,513

2,744

3,860

7,004
16,208

7,234

Tuition
Revenue

7,469,349

6,673,909

7,379,312
6,994,244
4,531,572

4,240,117

3,669,047

3,427,523

2,953,696
2,088,533

Refund of
Prior Year

Rent Expenditure

$

Source: District Records

14,450

Shared
Service

Revenue

EXHIBIT J-5

3,1 06

Misc.

2,049

127,847

3,944
19,666

3,039

30,475

14,800

7,496

16,47I
14,856

8,415

264

Total

s 7,476,650

6,697,606

7,385,892
6,gl6,gl7
4,675,732

4,267,913

3,699,379

3,443,393

2,979,309

2,099,090
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EXHIBIT J-14

SALEM COT]NTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Year Population'

Personal
fncome

(thousands

of dollars) b

Per Capita
Personal

fncome "

Unemployment

Rate d

2017

2016
2015
2014
20t3
2012

20tt
2010
2009
2008

62,903

63,538

64,180

64,670

65,062

65,656

66,031

65,998

66,342

66,194

42,936
42,936
42,893
42,850

41,262

40,8r7
40,819

39,460
38,815

38,892

7.0%

7.0%

7.1%

8.2%

8.8%

1r.0%
t0.8%
7.4%

10.7%

6.3%

2,700,770,717

2,728,051,229

2,752,863,113
2,771,I09,500
2,684,599,244

2,679,990,952
2,695,253,359
2,604,281,090

2,575,064,730
2,574,417,049

Source:
u Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
b Personal income

" Per Capita Source: Regional Economic Information System
dUnemployment 

data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
*t Estimates



Function/Program

Instruction

Regular

Special education

Other special education

Vocational

Other instruction

Support Services:

Tuition

Student & instruction related services

General administrative services

School administrative services

Business administrative services

Plant operations and maintenance

Pupil transportation

Food Service

Total

-87 -

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
F'ULL-TIME EOUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
ftJNAUDITED)

2008 2009

I
l5
20

* Increase in Child Study Team Staff
Source: District Personnel Records

School Aide Position Report as of 9/30 each year.

Certified Staffreport as of 10/15 each year.

2010

I
16

27

z0tt 2nl2

l8
I
2

I
l6
27

l8
I
z

1.25

2

20

27

57 66.25

2013 2014 2015

20

I
2

2.5

3

2l
26

20

I
2

2.5

J

21

26

69.5 74.5

EXHIBIT J-16

20

1

2

2.5

2

J

2l
26

2016 2017

20

1

2

2.5

2

J

25

30

11< 11<

20

I
2

2.5

2

J

25

30

22

I
J

2.5

I

J

25

30

77.5 87.5
::

22

I

2.5

I

22

I
J

2.5

I

87.5 87.5
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EXHIBIT J-17

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
OPERATING STATISTICS
LAST TDN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

Average Averâge

FiscaloperatingCostPerPercentageTeachingEñffiT-ffiffi""l"i,'ll.".o,.3,îå']'."í;"?lÏ3:li,A
Year Enrollment ExÞenditures " Pupil Change Staff b Disability Disturbed Severe Autistic Handicapped (ADE) c (ADA) c Enrollment p

2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008

¿o3

262
29s
286
154
t70
170
109

84

83

ï 9,257,498 $ 3s,200
8,433,265 32,188
8,540,867 28,952
7,482,626 26,163
6,158,652 39,991
5,s26,t65 32,507
4,890,522 28,768
4,480,832 41,109
3,635,702 43,282
2,720,447 32,776

Sources: District records, ASSA and Schedules J-12, J-14

Note: Enrollment based on June Student Placement Report

a Operating expenditures equal total expenditures less debt service a¡d capital outlay; Schedule J-4
b Teaching staff includes only full-time equivalents of certificated staff
c Average daily enrollment and average daily attendance are obtained from the School Register Summary (SRS).

9.360/o 40 4.0:
11.18% 29 5.0:
10.66% 29 5.0:

-34.58% 26 5.0:
23.020/o 26 5.0 :

13.00% 26
-30.02% 26
-5.02o/o 25
32.05o/o 17
2.560/o 15

).u :

4.0 :

4.0:
4.0:
4.0 i

4.0:
6.0:
50.
6.0 :

7.0 i

5.0:
3.0 :

3.0 :

3.0 :

3.0:
3.0:
3.0 :

7.0:
6.0:
5.0 :

5.0:1
6.0: 1

6.0: 1

6.0:l
6.0: I
6.0: I
5.0:0
6.0: 0

4.0:1
4.0:1

6.0:l
5.0:1
5.0:1
5.0:1
5.0:l
5.0:l
9.0:0
4.0:0
5.0:1
3.4 :0

259.4
256.s
241.9
23s.4
1s4.6
161.2

160.9

139.7

I18.8
84.9

224.0
228.4
216-0
204.9
142.7

151.8

149.5

128.5

91.9
90.6

1.l3Yo
6.04o/o

2.76%
52.260/o

-4.09%
0.19%
15.18%
17.59%
39.93%
-0.82o/o

86.3s%
89.05%
89.29o/o

87.04%
92.30%
94.17%
92.91o/o

91.98o/o

7736%
106.7lo/o



District Buildins

Elementarv. Middle & Hish
Daretown

Square Feet
Capacity (students)

Enrollment

Cumberland
Square Feet

Capacity (students)

Enrollment

Other
Administration Building

Square Feet
Transportation

Square Feet
Maintenance Oflices

Square Feet

Number of Schools at June 30, 201 7
Elementary = 2
Middle School = 2
High School:2
Other =

Source: District records, ASSA
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SALEM COTJNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

2009 2010 20tl 2012 20132008

22,464
80
48

22,464
80
48

32,619

80
a^

22,464
80

49

32,619
80
60

22,646
80

47

32,619
80

+J

22,646
80

44

32,619
80

55

2014

22,646
80
48

32,619
80

54

2015

EXHIBIT J-lE

22,646
80

45

32,619

80
I>

2076

22,646
80

+J

32,619
80

93

2017

22,646
80

45

32,619

80

100

22,646
80
39

32,619

80
88
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF'REOUIRED MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURAS BY SCHOOL F'ACILITY
LAST TEN F'ISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDTTED)

Daretown
Cumberland Campus

Mamin$on Twp. Reg. Day

Total School Facilities

Other Facilities

Grand Total

School Facilities
Project

# 2017

$ 62,465 $

70,796

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
11-000-261-xxx

2016 2015

133,26t

s 133,26r $ 187,387::

58,547 $

70,247

57,432

t86,226

51,829

113,440

28,960

I,l6l

2014 20t3

$ 4r,823 S 35,477

58,237 45,447

t94,229

$ 196,671 $ 104,112 $:

2,442

100,060

4,052

2012 2ntt

$ 42,sss $ 44,986

52,776 27,656

EXHIBIT J-19

80,924

r,55 I

82,475

95,331

$ 9s,331 S 72,642::

2010 2009 2008

$ 82,373 $ 141,364 S 32,642
44,854 18,559

72,642 lLt,Lzt

$ 127,227 $ 159,923

159,923 32.642

$ 32.642
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
INSURANCE SCHEDT]LE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2016
(UNAUDITED)

Type ofCoverage

School Package Policy
Blanket Building & Personal Property

Comprehensive General Liability
Products and Completed Operations Limit
Sexual Abuse Single Limit
Sexual Abuse Combined Limit
Personal Advertising Injury Limit
Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Employee Benefits Liabiliry

Commercial Inland Marine
Blanket Hardware and Softwa¡e

Boiler & Machinery - Property & Extra Expense
Combined Single Limit per Accident and Propefy Damage

Commercial Crime Section
Employee Dishonesty Coverage

Comprehensive Automobile Liability
Combined Single Limit

Environmental Liability
Each Pollution Event Limit
Combined Limit

School Leaders Errors & Omissions Liabilitv

EXHIBITJ-20

Deductible

1,000

Company

NJSBAIG

Limit of Liability
Insured Retained Limit

Workman's Compensation Policy
Bodily Injury by Accident
Bodily Injury by Disease
Bodily Injury by Disease

Excess Liability
Fireman's Fund Indemnity Corp. Limits of Insurance (Occurrence)

Coverage

$ 13,705,933

l 1,000,000

r 1,000,000

17,000,000
I 1,000,000
r 1,000,000
l 1,000,000

350,000

100,000,000

100,000

r r,000,000

1,ooo,ooo
l 1,000,000

I 1,000,000

5,000

2,000,000
2,000,000

2,000,000

50,000,000

50,000,000

1,000,000

s,000,000
500,000

10,000

150,000

1,000

1,000

1,000

1,000

r,000

25,000

Berkley Ins. Co./ùlcclosky

US Fire Ins. Co.

Ohio Casualty Ins Co.

Aggregate Limit
Student Accident Policy

Full Excess Maximum Benefit Amount
Catastrophic Student Accident Coverage

Accident Medical Expense - Maximum per Participant
Catastrophic Cash Benefit - Maximum Beneht

Surety Bonds
Business Administrator
Treasurer

Source: DistrictRecords
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NIGHTLINGBR, COLAVITA & VOLPA
A Professíonal Association

Ce ¡tifÍe d P u b líc Acco u nta nt s
991 S. Black Horce Pike

P.O. Box 799
Williamstown, NJ 08094

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE A}[D OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AI\ AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDAI\CE
WITH GOVERNMENT ATIDITING STA¡IDARDS

INDEPENDENT AIIDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Salem County Special Services School District
County of Salem, New Jersey 08079

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audìtíng Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education
of the Salem County Special Services School District, in the County of Salem, State of New Jersey, as of and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Board of Education of the Salem County Special Services School District's basic f,rnancial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated November 7,2017.

Internal Co4trol Over Financial Reportins

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Salem County Special Services
School District Board of Education's internal control over f,rnancial reporting to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Salem County Special Services School
District Board of Education's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Salem County Special Services School District Board of Education's internal control.

A deficiency in tnternal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis.

A materíal wealcness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a

reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficíency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance. We considered the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs to be significant, labeled Finding 2017-2.

EXHIBIT K-l

(8s6) 629-3111
Fax (856) 728-2245
www.colovÍta.net
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was

not designed to identiry all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these

limitations, during our audit we did not identiff any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Salem County Snecial Service Board of Education's Response to Findings

Salem County Special Service Board of Education's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the

accompanying schedule of frndings and questioned costs. Their response was not subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, \rye express no opinion on it.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Salem County Special Services Board of Education's

financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The

results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards and the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance,

Department of Education, and State of New Jersey and is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned costs, labeled finding 2017-1.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the

results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Salem County Special Services School
District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance

with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Salem County Special Services School District's control
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Borough of Woodbine Board of
Education, the New Jersey Department of Education and other state and federal awarding agencies and pass-

through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

Respectfully submitted,

NIGHTLINGER. COLAVITA & VOLPA, PA

Raymond Colavita, CPA
Licensed Public School Accountant

No.9l5
November 7,2017

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA A ProfessíonalAssocÍatÍon C e rtífíe d P u b Iíc Acco u nta nts



NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA
A Professíonøl Association

Ce Éif ie d P u b lic Acco u nta nts
991 S. Black Horse Pike

P.O. Box 799
Williamstown, NJ 08094

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY

TINIFORM GI]IDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCT]LAR 15-08

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Salem County Special Services School District
County of Salem, New Jersey 08079

Report on Compliance for Each Maior Federal and State Program

We have audited the Board of Education of the Salem County Special Services School District, in the County of
Salem, State of New Jersey, compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance

Supplement and the New Jersey Stste Aid/Grant Compliance Supplemenl that could have a direct and material effect on

each of the Salem County Special Services School District's major federal and state programs for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2017.The Salem County Special Services Board of Education's major federal and state programs are

identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibilitv

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions

of its grants applicable to each of its major federal and state programs.

Auditor's Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Salem County Special Services Board of
Education's major federal and state compliance based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred

above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Støndards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform

Guidance) and as prescribed by the Ofhce of School Finance, Depørtment of Education, State of New Jersey, Uniform

Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08, require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state

program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Salem County Special Services

Board of Education's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state

program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Salem County Special Services Board of Education's

compliance with those requirements.

EXHTBIT K-2

(856) 629-3111
Fax (856) 728-2245
www.colavita.net
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Opinion on Each Maior Program

In our opinion, the Board of Education of the Salem County Special Services School District, in the County of Salem, State of
New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct

and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30,2017 .

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Salem County Special Services School District's Board of Education is responsible for establishing and

maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our

audit of compliance, we considered Salem County Special Services Board of Education's intemal control over compliance with

the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program in order to determine the

auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each

major federal or state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance

and New Jersey OMB 15-08, but not for the pulpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over

compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Salem County Special Services School

District Board of Education's intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over

compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance; such that there is a reasonable

possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented

or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deJiciency in internol control over compliance is a deficiency, or

combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a major federal or state

program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention

by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section

and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or

significant deficiencies. 'We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material

weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identihed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control

over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Salem County Special

Services Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education, other state awarding agencies and pass-through

entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA, PA

Licensed Public School Accountant
No.915

November 7,2017

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA A Professional Assocíatíon Ce rtifie d P u b IÍc Acco u nta nts



Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed{hrough State Department of Education:
Enterprise Fund:
Child Nutrition Cluster:

Cash Assista¡ce:
School Brea.kfast Program
School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program
National School Lunch Program

Federal
CFDA

Total U.S. Department of A$iculture

U. S. Deparhnent of Education
Passed-through State Department of Education:
Special Revenue Fund:

Total U.S. DeDartment of Education

Total Federal Financial Awards

Number Number Number Amount From To 2016 Á.mount Received Funds Direct (A) ieceivable) Revenue Grantor

Federal
FAIN

l0.ss3 171NJ304N1099
10.ss3 16161NJ304N1099
10.ss5 171NJ304N1099
r0.5s5 16161NJ304N1099

Grânt or Program
State or
Project Award

(A) There were no awuds pæsed through to subreciepents.

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Notes to the Schedules ofFinancial Assistance are an integral part ofthis schedule.

A Single Audit was not required in accordance with Uniform Guidance since the total ofall federal grant expenditures was less than $750,000.

-96 -

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

$ 28,933 7t1t16-6t30n7 $ $
33,539 7t1tr5 - 6t30n6 (6,364)
5s,876 7t1/16 - 6t30n7
s7,9s4 7/1/1s - 6t30n6 (10,390)

(16,754)

Balance at Carryover
June 30, $ryalkover) Cash

Budgetary
Expenditures Total

Pass Budgetafy Budgetâry
Through ExpendituresExpenditures

$ 27,040 $
6,364

5' ?O{

10,390

$ (16,754) S $ 96,189 $ (84,809) $

96,189

(28,e33) $

(55,876)

EXHIBIT K-3

(84,809)

(Accounts Unearned Due to
Balance at June 30.2017

$ (28,e33) $

(s5,876)

(84,809)

(1,8e3) $

(3,481)

(s,374)

s (84,809) $ (s,374) $



State Grantor/Proeram Title

State Department of Education:

General Fund

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contrib.
Reimbursed TPAF Social Securiw Contrib.

Special Revenue Fund

State Department of Education:

Food Service Enterprise Fund
State Department of Agriculture:

National School Lunch Program (State Share) 17-100-010-3350-023
National School Lunch Program (State Share) 16-100-010-3350-023

Total State Financial Assistance Subiect to OMB 15-08

State Financial Assistance Not Subject to OMB 15-08

On BehalfTPAF Pension Contribution 17495-034-5095-002
On Behalf TPAF Post Retirement Med'l. Contril 17-495-034-5095-001
On-behalfTPAFLong-TermDisability 17-495-034-5095-004

Program
or

Grant or State Award Grant Period
Project Number Amount From To

17495-034-5094-003 $ 355,120 7tltt6-6/30/r7
16-495-034-5094-003 37s.048 Ttvrs-6t30/16

-97 -

Total State Financial Assistance

Balance at June 30. 2016

Unerrned
Revenue

(Accounts
Receivable)

Due to Cash Budgetary (Accounts
Grântor Received Expenditures Receivable)

$ 1,321,814 $ (1,320,396)

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Notes to the Schedules ofFinancial Assistance are an integral part ofthis schedule.

1,024 7/1t16-6/30/17
1,115 7/1t1s-6t30t16

( l 8,283)

(1 8,283)

$ 338,121 $ (3ss,120) $ (16,999) $
18,283

524,546 7nlt6-6t30t17
437,066 7nt16-6t30/17

2,640 7/t/r6-6t30t17

Balance nt June 30,2017

356,404

(1e8)

$_ ('1112$

EXHIBIT K-4

(le8)

Unearned
Revenue/ -õ"mrtattve

Interfund Due to Total
Payable Grântor Expenditures

(3ss,120)

:$--_3s1t61$

$ s24,s46
437,066

2,640

960

198

(16,999)

1,158

(1,024)

( 1,024)

(3s6,144) $ (17,063) $

355,126
375,048

$ (s24,s46)
(437,066)

(2,640)

(64',)

730,t'74

(64)

1,024

1,1 15

2,139

17) 712
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF AWARDS

AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 1: GENERAL

EXHIBIT K-5

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include federal
and state award activity of the Salem County Special Services School District. The Board of Education is
defined in Note I to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received directly
from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through other
government agencies are included on the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state f,rnancial
assistance.

NOTE 2: BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented on
the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are

presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note I to the
Board's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR 200- Unifurm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements

þr Federal Awards, and New Jersey OMB 15-08. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements. The District has

elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue
fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the
subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the exception
of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant
to N.J.S.A., 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes that payment is not recognized until the subsequent budget
year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state aid payment in the subsequent year. The special
revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis, which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last state aid payment in the current budget year,

consistent with ¡¿1.S. A.. 18A:22-44.2.

There were no net adjustments to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis for the general or
special revenue funds. See Note 1 (the Notes to Required Supplementary Information) for a reconciliation of
the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue frinds.
Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP
basis as presented on the following page:
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EXHIBIT K.5

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT.
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF AWARDS

AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30.2017

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

Federal State Total

General Fund

Special Revenue Fund
Food Service Fund

$ $ 1,319,372 $ 1,3 19,372

84,809 1,024 85,833

Total Awards & Financial Assistance $ 84,809 S 1,320,396 $ 1,405,205

NOTE 4: RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and
state financial reports.

NOTE 5: FEDERAL AND STATE LOANS OUTSTANDING

The Salem County Special Services School District had no outstanding loans at June 30, 2017.

NOTE 6: OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions
represents the amount paid by the state on behalf of the District for the year ended June 30, 2017. TPAF
Social Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's share of social
security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2017.

NOTE 7: SCHOOLWIDE PROGRAM FUNDS

As the District's Federal Programs are on atargeted student group basis, there are no schoolwide programs in
the District.

NOTE 8: MAJOR PROGRAMS

The award designated as a major program, if applicable, is identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results
Section of the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cost.

NOTE 9: ADJUSTMENTS

There were no adjustments included on Schedule A and B.



Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
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SALEM COIJNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE F'ISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OI7

Section I - Summarv of Auditor's Results

EXHIBIT K-6

yes Xno

none
reported

yes

none
yes reported

yes

Unmodified

X yes

l) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified? X yes

Noncompliance material to basic
financial statements noted?

Federal Awards N/A

Internal control over major programs:

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
maJor programs: N/A

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200 section .516(a) of
Uniform Guidance?

no

no

CFDA Number(s) FAIN Number(s) Name of Federal Prosram or Cluster

N/A

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs (section 518): N/A

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF'FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JT]NE 3O,2OI7
(continued)

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results (continued)

State Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes 

- 

no

Internal control over major programs:

EXHIBIT K-6

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodif,red

l) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with NJOMB
Circular Letter 15-08 as applicable?

Identification of major programs:

State Grant/Proi ect Number(s)

t7-495-034-s094-003

yes X no

none
yes X reported

yes Xno

Name of State Program

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contrib.
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EXHIBIT K.7

SALEM COTJNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF'FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE F'ISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OI7
(continued)

Section II - X'inancial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, materialweakness, fraud, illegal acts, violations of
provisions of contracts and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial statements for
which Government Auditing Standards and with audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of
School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey that requires reporting in the
Uniform Guidance, New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 audit.

Findinq: 2017-1 (AMR Finding 2017-1)

Griteria or specific requirement:
N.J.S.A. 184:17-32 states that when a Board of Education determines the amount of surety bond
coverage for a Treasurer, the amount shall be guided by a schedule of minimum limits to be
promulgated by the State board. The minimum requirements for the surety bond shall be such
percentage of the current year's budget as is required in the schedule set forth in N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-
16.4.

Condition:
The Treasurer's surety bond coverage, for the 2016-17 School Year, did not meet the minimum
amount required by N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-16.4.

Gontext:
The Treasurer's surety bond coverage of $150,000 did not meet the required minimum coverage
amount of $160,000 for the 2016-17 School Year.

Effect:
The internal control benefit of insurance was limíted, as surety bond coverage of the Treasurer was
not maintained in accordance with the prescribed schedule.

Gause:
lnadvertent oversight

Recommendation:
The District should increase the Treasurer's surety bond to a minimum of $160,000.

Manaqement's response:
Management is aware of the finding and agrees with the recommendation.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF F'INDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

F'OR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OI7
(continued)

Section II - X'inancial Statement Findings (continued)

EXIIIBIT K.7

Findinq: 2017-2 (AMR Finding 2017-2)

Griteria or specific requirement:
N.J.S.A. 184: 17-19 states that the chief school administrator or board designee other than the
secretary shall prepare the monthly reconciliation of bank account statements and in conjunction
with the secretary take any steps necessary to bring the cash record balance and reconciled bank
balance into agreement prior to completion of the secretary's monthly report.

Gondition:
Bank transfers between the Regular Account and Payroll Agency, were frequently not in agreement
with amounts reflected in the District's accounting software program.

Context:
Numerous non-reconciling items were reflected on the Treasurer's bank reconciliations, resulting
from discrepancies between actual bank transfers and amounts reflected in the Client's accounting
software program.

Effect:
Reconciliation discrepancies resulted between the Board Secretary's Report and Treasurer's
Report.

Cause:
Insufficient monitoring of bank transfer duties, resulting in general ledger posting errors.

Recommendation:
Procedures to record bank transfers between the GeneralAccount and PayrollAgency should be
reviewed and revised, in order to ensure that actual bank transfers agree to amounts recorded in
the District's accounting software program.

Management's response:
Management is aware of the finding and agrees with the recommendation.
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SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,20t7 (CONT'D)

Section III - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

FEDERAL A\ryARDS

Findinq: NONE
lnformation on the state program:
Criteria or specific requirement:
Condition:
Questioned Costs:
Effect:
Cause:
Recommendation:
Management's response:

STATE AWARDS

Findinq: NONE
lnformation on the state program:
Griteria or specific requirement:
Condition:
Questioned Gosts:
Gontext:
Effect:
Cause:
Recommendation:
Manaqement's response:

EXHIBIT K.7
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EXHIBIT K-8

SALEM COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF F'INDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OI7

This section identifies the status of prior - year findings related to the basic financial statements and
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance that are requíred to be reported in accordance with
Chapter 612 of Government Auditing Standards, US OMB Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requírements for Federal Awards section .511(a) (b) and New Jersey
OMB's CÍrcular 04-04 and/or 15-08, as applicable.

STATUS OF PRIOR - YEAR F'INDINGS

Findinq 2016-1

Condition: The Treasurer's surety bond coverage, for the 2015-16 School Year, did not meet the
minimum amount required by N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-16.4.

Status: Unresolved

Findinq 2016-2

Condition: During the test of expenditures, an unrecorded liability of $28,774 was noted for Other
Purchased Services.

Status: Resolved

Findinq 2016-3

Condition: One approved capital lease was made jointly for two related Districts, without any clear
cut distribution of expenditures, as well as the receipt or redemption of Jease principle.

Status: Resolved

Findinq 2016-4

Gondition: During the course of our audit, it was determined that the District budget did contain
adequate provisions for the various purchases made through a capital lease. As a result, the
Capital Outlay section of the budget was overexpended.

Status: Resolved


